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During the last financial year, the control system of the Group’s
only vessel, i.e. Vessel Asian Atlas, was broken down and was
accordingly not in services in the first half of the current financial
year. As such, the Group disposed of Vessel Asian Atlas through
the disposal of a subsidiary with a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$15.2 million.

At the same time on the disposal of Vessel Asian Atlas, the Group
acquired another vessel, namely Vessel Bao Xin as a
replacement. Vessel Bao Xin is a general cargo ship that can be
utilised in most dry bulk cargo shipments, which has a wider
potential market and shall be relatively less sensitive to the
weakening worldwide economy. The Group considers that Vessel
Bao Xin will provide a more stable income stream to the business
of the Group in the coming years.

To strengthen the financial resources of the Group and better
position itself for investment opportunities, the Group
successfully completed a placement of shares with net proceeds
of approximately HK$33 million during year. The Group also
announced a rights issue (the “Rights Issue”) on the basis of one
Rights Share for every one share held with bonus issue (the
“Bonus Issue”) of two bonus shares for every one Rights Share
during the year which was completed subsequent to the end of
the reporting period in April 2014 with net proceeds of
approximately HK$147.7 million.

With the strengthened capital base, the Group is actively
exploring other business opportunities and conservatively
considering assets and/or business acquisitions, where
appropriate, in order to enhance and improve the business
operation and profitability of the Group.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our business
partners and shareholders for their continuing confidence in our
Group. I would also like to express my deepest appreciation to all
staff and our Board of Directors for their effort and dedication to
the Group.

Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recognised a turnover of HK$12.9 million during the
year which was generated by Vessel Bao Xin for 8 voyages
whereas no turnover was recorded in last year since the then
only vessel of the Group was out of services as a result of the
break down of the control system of Vessel Asian Atlas.

The loss before taxation for the year was HK$3.5 million as
compared to HK$31.4 million for last year. The reduction of the
loss of the Group for the year was mainly attributable to the
recognition of a gain on disposal of Vessel Asian Atlas through
the disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$15.2 million and
the improvement of the vessel chartering business.

In order to strengthen the capital base and financial resources of
the Group, the Company successfully completed the placing of
120,000,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each with net
proceeds of approximately HK$33 million on 23rd September
2013. The Group also completed the Rights Issue of 844,000,000
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each (following the capital
reduction of the issued share capital of the Company from
HK$0.05 each to HK$0.01 each and the subdivision of each
authorised but unissued share of HK$0.05 into five shares of
HK$0.01 each) with net proceeds of approximately HK$147.7
million subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 3rd April
2014.

As at 31st March 2014, the total assets and net assets of the
Group were HK$207.4 million (2013: HK$82.4 million) and HK$60.2
million (2013: HK$31.0 million) respectively. The significant
improvement of the financial position of the Group was mainly
attributable to the fund raising activities as mentioned above.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Since the notification of the break down and out of control of the
control system of Vessel Asian Atlas during the year ended 31st
March 2013, the Group has been considering various options to
resolve the problems, such as to have it fully repaired for
achieving semi-submersible purpose or to have it applied for
change its usage in general voyage chartering business. Based
on the management’s preliminary assessment, it is time and cost
consuming to have it repaired which may not be cost-effective.
Although it is possible to have Vessel Asian Atlas to apply for
general voyage chartering business by carrying general cargos,
given it is a semi-submersible heavy lift ship which is principally
used for transporting heavy and infrastructure equipment, the
management considers that it is not economically feasible to
have it used for general cargo voyage due to its fuel consumption
rate.
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As such, the Group entered into a disposal agreement in July
2013 with a company beneficially owned by a former director of
the Company who is also a director of a subsidiary and a former
subsidiary, Asian Atlas Limited (“Asian Atlas”), of the Company.
Pursuant to which, Vessel Asian Atlas was disposed through the
disposal of Asian Atlas with a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$15.2 million. At the same time on the disposal of Vessel Asian
Atlas, the Group acquired another vessel, namely Vessel Bao Xin,
at a consideration of HK$35 million as a replacement. Vessel Bao
Xin is a general cargo ship that can be utilised in most dry bulk
cargo shipments. Since the completion of the acquisition of
Vessel Bao Xin in October 2013, it carried out 8 voyages during a
six months period ended 31st March 2014.

The Group considers that Vessel Bao Xin has a wider potential
market and shall be relatively less sensitive to the weakening
worldwide economy which will provide a more stable income
stream to the business of the Group. Vessel Bao Xin has been
deployed in the waters around the Southeast Asia region and the
PRC. The PRC remains the primary driver for growth in the world
seaborne trade. Being one of the largest trading countries in the
world, the PRC is actively trading within the area in the Asia
Pacific region. Although the amount of PRC imports from Asia
Pacific region dropped in recent years, it shows an upward trend
in general. The Group is optimistic to have further growth in the
Group’s vessel chartering business and is actively seeking
opportunities to acquire vessels to expand its vessel chartering
business in the years to come.

The Group has successfully executed a placing of shares and
Rights Issue during the year. With the strengthen financial
position, the Group will deploy more resources and take
appropriate strategy to expand the sources of income apart from
the vessel chartering business. The Group would also actively
identify and explore other investment and business opportunities
to broaden its assets and revenue base, including but not limited
to securities investment, money lending and leasing business.
The Group will cautiously search for investment opportunities so
as to produce a steady growth in the Group’s long term
performance.

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Capital Structure and
Gearing

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources. On 23rd September 2013, the Group
completed the placing of 120,000,000 shares of the Company of
HK$0.05 each with net proceeds of approximately HK$33 million.
The Group also received in advance of approximately HK$141
million, being proceeds from the Rights Issue, during the year.
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As at 31st March 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances of
HK$163.0 million (2013: HK$12.1 million) and total borrowings of
HK$756,000 (2013: HK$41.7 million). The Group's gearing ratio,
calculated by dividing total borrowings by total equity, was 1% as
at the end of the reporting period (2013: 134%). The liquidity ratio,
being the ratio of current assets over current liabilities was 1.15
as at 31st March 2014 (2013: 2.13).

The Group's gearing ratio was significantly improved by
completion of the placing of 120,000,000 shares of the Company
of HK$0.05 each and the repayment of borrowings during the
year. The liquidity ratio was lower as compared to last year as
partial of the proceeds received in advance from the Rights Issue
of HK$141.2 million was included in the current liabilities as at
31st March 2014. The liquidity ratio will be improved to 30.0 upon
completion of the Rights Issue on 3rd April 2014.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Operations of the Group are mainly conducted in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$") and United States dollar (“US$") and its revenue,
expenses, assets, liabilities and borrowings are principally
denominated in HK$ and USS$, which do not pose significant
foreign currency risk at present.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31st March 2014.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING
ACTIVITIES

On 30th August 2013, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place (the “Placing”)
120,000,000 shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each in an
aggregate nominal value of HK$6,000,000 at a placing price of
HK$0.28 each. The Placing was completed on 23rd September
2013 and the shares were placed to not less than six independent
placees, with net proceeds of approximately HK$33 million
(equivalent to HK$0.275 per share), of which HK$15 million has
been applied for the partial repayment of the Group’s borrowings
and the remaining of approximately HK$18 million was applied as
general working capital of the Group.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting held on 4th March
2014, the capital structure of the Company had been restructured

by:

(i) the reduction of the issued share capital of the Company
through a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on each of the issued
shares so that the nominal value of each issued share will
be reduced from HK$0.05 to HK$0.01 (the “Capital
Reduction”),
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(i)  the subdivision of each authorised but unissued share of
HK$0.05 into five shares of HK$0.01 each;

(i) the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company as at 30th
September 2013 in the sum of HK$79,028,000 (the “Share
Premium Cancellation”);

(iv)  the transfer of the credit arising from the Capital Reduction
and the Share Premium Cancellation to the contributed
surplus account of the Company; and

(v)  the utilization of the contributed surplus account of the
Company to offset the entire balance of the accumulated
losses of the Company as at 28th February 2014.

The shareholders of the Company also approved a rights issue
(the “Rights Issue”) of 844,000,000 rights shares (“Rights Shares”)
of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.18 each on the
basis of one Rights Share for every one share held with bonus
issue (the “"Bonus Issue”) on the basis of two bonus shares
(“Bonus Shares”) for every one Rights Share taken up under the
Rights Issue.

The Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue was completed subsequent
to the end of the reporting period on 3rd April 2014, and a total of
2,532,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each, based on 844,000,000
Rights Shares and 1,688,000,000 Bonus Shares, were issued with
net proceeds of approximately HK$147.7 million, of which
approximately HK$80 million to HK$100 million to be applied to
future capital investment and business development of the Group
and the remaining of approximately HK$67.7 million to HK$47.7
million to be applied as general working capital.

The Company also adopted a share option scheme pursuant to
an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 2nd September 2013. A
total of 72,400,000 options may be granted by the Company to
the eligible participants to subscribe for shares of the Company
subject to the terms and conditions of the share option scheme.
As at 31st March 2014, no option has been granted under the
share option scheme.

Save as the disclosure above, there was no changes in the capital
structure of the Company during the year.

(i) WEERCOSHEITLZIAEBREITRG
BEFASDREREECOE T 2K

7

(i) FHER-_T—=FAA=+TRHINAR
AN EEREZEHERBER
79,028,00078 7T ([ B in s ErEsE 1)

(V) ASRCAHIR M B 0 it (B rE SR P EE A 2
REREARAZERERE &

V) BRAARFAZEFESKEEBEARTRN
“E-NF_A-FTNBEAEEZE
HRAEER ©

ARRER I E T iR AR 2A0.18 78
TLZ R REE MR (TR ]) - ¥ 17844,000,000
P & B T 1E.0.0178 7T 2 B B 4 (1 AL AR
n])  BEEREHE —BRRMHEE —RHERK
10 SR B R AR — AR AR AR 1 I W A
AR ([ALRR)) 2 ARSI TALR ([ SEATAIRY) -

HAR R BEATAL R T S5 BR8N — T — Iy
A=A%K « WE T4 $£2,532,000,000 3% &
IR TEE0.018 7T 2 ¥ AR 1 - BN844,000,000 %
MR 7 B 1,688,000,000 A% AT A% » FT{SRUBF
#H#9147,700,0007% 7T + & H 4980,000,000 4 7T
% 100,000,000 T AEHBERIKE + LA
EEEKBRE- # T67700000% T &
47,700,000 B TTAER— M EEES ©

BEARBR_ZE-—=FNAAZRABETZRER
BEARGRRBBEBRER  ARFRA
TR 8 - XRNIBIRER BIRR K
fEREFT - ANRB AR A 72,400,000 fE A 42
TRERZEEURBARR RN - R=F
—HFE=A=1+—H  SEBRERBRET
BER M -

B EXPTIERESN

RAEE  ARBERLGE



CIRIE B AR A E] @ 2014 F F 3R

Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS
As at 31st March 2014, none of the Group's assets was pledged
to secure any facilities and borrowings granted to the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF ASSETS

On 31st July 2013, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with an independent third party to acquire a vessel,
Vessel Bao Xin (the “Acquisition”) at a consideration of HK$35
million.

On the same day, the Company also entered into a disposal
agreement (the "Disposal”) with a company beneficially owned
by a former director of the Company, who is also a director of a
subsidiary and a former subsidiary, Asian Atlas Limited (“Asian
Atlas”), of the Company. Pursuant to the disposal agreement, the
Company (i) disposed of its 100% equity interest in Asian Atlas
and (ii) assigned the shareholder’s loan of approximately
HK$95,424,000 in full owing from Asian Atlas to the Company for
a cash consideration of HK$40 million.

The Acquisition and the Disposal were completed on 30th
September 2013 with a gain of approximately HK$15.2 million on
the Disposal.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31st March 2014.

COMMITMENTS
Details of the commitments are set-out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st March 2014, the Group employed approximately 31
employees. The Group continues to maintain and upgrade the
capabilities of its workforce by providing them with adequate and
regular training. The Group remunerates its Directors and
employees mainly based on industry practices and individual’s
performance and experience. On top of regular remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
staff by reference to the Group's performance as well as
individual’s performance.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Board believes that good governance is essential to the
maintenance of the Group’'s competitiveness and to its healthy
growth. The Company has adopted practices which meet the
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure its continuous compliance with the CG Code.
The Company has been in compliance with all code provisions
set out in the CG Code for the year ended 31st March 2014, save
for the deviations from code provision A.6.7 which was explained
below.

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the
views of shareholders. An independent non-executive Director
did not attend a special general meeting held on 30th September
2013 due to other work commitments. The Company will
strengthen its planning process, by giving all Directors sufficient
time to arrange their work in advance and providing any
necessary support for their presence and participation in the
meetings, so as to facilitate all Directors attending the Company's
future general meetings.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the control and leadership of the
Group and its duties include the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, business strategies, internal control systems,
material transactions, appointment of directors and other
significant operational, financial and legal compliance matters.
The Board delegates the authority to manage the daily affairs of
the Group to the Chief Executive Officer and senior management.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management
on behalf of the Group.
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Specifically in relation to corporation governance function, the
Board is responsible for the corporation governance function as
a whole, and establishes an internal control group to be
responsible for the specific operation. During the reporting period
and up to the date of this report, the Board had performed the
following duties:

1. Developing and reviewing relevant corporate governance
policy and practice of the Company;

2. Reviewing and inspecting continuous professional
development and training of Directors and senior
management;

3. Reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices of the
Company being in compliance with the statutory and other
regulatory provisions;

4. Developing, reviewing and checking code and provision of
conducts applicable to the Directors and employees; and

5. Reviewing that the Company being in compliance with the
CG Code and corporate governance reporting requirements.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group as well as the advice from
and services provided by the company secretary, if and when
required, with a view to ensure that the procedures are in
compliance and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

There are established procedures for Directors upon reasonable
request, to seek independent advice in appropriate
circumstances for them to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, at the Company’s expenses.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance for the
Directors and the senior management of the Group to indemnify
their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Composition

The Board currently comprises 3 executive Directors and 3
independent non-executive Directors from different businesses
and professional fields. The Directors, including independent
non-executive Directors, have brought a balance of valuable and
diversified businesses and professional expertises, experiences
and independent judgment to the Board for its efficient and
effective management of the Group’s business.

The Board during the year and up to the date of this report has
comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Zheng Juhua — Chairman

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen — Chief Executive Officer and Company Secretary
Mr. Chen Shaohua

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Man Kwok Leung — Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth — Chairman of Audit Committee

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse yet balanced set
of skills and experience which is essential for effective leadership
of the Company. All the Board members possess strong
professional expertise, extensive experience in corporate
management as well as sharp commercial acumen. Biographic
details of Directors are disclosed in the “Biographical Details of
Directors” section of the Report of the Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by different persons for purpose of maintaining
independence and a more balanced basis for judgments and
decisions. The key role of the Chairman is to provide leadership
to the Board. In performing her duties, the Chairman shall ensure
that the Board functions effectively in the discharge of its
responsibilities. The Chairman also has the responsibility of
taking the lead to ensure that the Board acts in the best interests
of the Company and the Group.

The key role of the CEO is to be responsible for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Company and business of
the Group. The duties of the CEO mainly include:

o providing leadership and supervising the effective
management of the Company;

o monitoring and controlling the financial and operational
performance of various divisions; and

o implementing the strategy and policies adopted by the
Company, setting and implementing objectives and
development plans.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, of whom Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth has appropriate
professional qualifications and related experiences in financial
matters.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of their independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all independent non-executive Directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The procedures for the appointment, re-election and removal of
Directors are laid down in the Company's bye-laws. The
Company has established a nomination committee to assist the
Board for reviewing its composition, monitoring the appointment
and independence, where applicable, of Directors, and identifying
suitable and qualified individuals to become board members
where necessary.

In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company, any director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not greater than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation but shall be eligible for re-election,
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. The directors (including those
appointed for a special term) to retire in every year shall be those
who have been longest in office since their last election but as
between persons who became directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves)
be determined by lot. Any Director appointed by the Directors
either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to
the existing Board shall not be taken into account in determining
which particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development
for Directors

Each newly appointed director will receive comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her
appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors whenever
necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the
Company pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have
participated in appropriate continuous professional development
activities during the year under review. In addition to their own
participation in professional training, relevant training and reading
materials was provided to the Directors by the Company in the
year to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant.

All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the business
and market changes and the Company’s performance, position
and prospectus to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Directors’ Liabilities Insurance

During the year ended 31st March 2014, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in
respect of potential legal actions against the Directors arising out
of corporate activities of the Group pursuant to Code Provision
A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such directors’ liability insurance will be
reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31st March 2014, no claim has been
made against the Directors.
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Remuneration of Directors

Non-executive Directors are paid fees generally in line with
market practice and taking into consideration the responsibilities
and time spent by Non-executive Directors on the Company’s
affairs. The remuneration of Executive Directors is determined by
the chairman of the Board in consultation with the Remuneration
Committee after taking into consideration market trends and
responsibilities and performance of the individual with a view to
provide attractive reward to and retain high performing
individuals.

Responsibilities in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
Group's financial statements. The financial statements for the
year ended 31st March 2014 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and applicable Interpretations issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquires, they
are not aware of any material uncertainty relating to events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditor, Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages
41t0 42.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that Board procedures are followed and Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board processes and the
timely preparation and dissemination to Directors comprehensive
meeting agendas and papers. Minutes of all Board meetings and
Board Committees are prepared and maintained by the Company
Secretary to record in sufficient details the matters considered
and decisions reached by the Board or Committee, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any Director. All
draft and final minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board
Committees are sent to Directors and Committee members
respectively for comments and records and are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.
From time to time, he organises seminars on specific topics of
significance and interest and disseminate reference materials to
the Directors for their information.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group's compliance with all obligations of the Listing Rules and
Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in the
Listing Rules, the timely dissemination to shareholders and the
market of information relating to the Group.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are observed and, where required, reflected in the
annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company. Whilst the Company Secretary reports to the
Chairman, all members of the Board have access to the advice
and service of the Company Secretary. Mr. Chan Chi Yuen has
been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since
June 2011 and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group's affairs.
In response to specific enquiries made, the Company Secretary
confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD MEETINGS

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Group.
Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other Board meetings.

For committee meetings, notices are served in accordance with
the required notice period stated in the relevant terms of
reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are normally sent to all Directors before
each Board meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Group and to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Board and each Director also have separate and
independent access to senior management whenever necessary.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions from time to time when a board-level decision on a
particular matter was required.

Guidelines are in place which stipulate that any material matter
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or Director will be dealt with at a duly convened Board meeting.
The Company'’s bye-laws also contain provisions stipulating the
procedures according to which any material matters involving
conflict of interests are to be approved at Board meeting.

Minutes of all Board meetings, recording sufficient details of
matters considered and decisions reached, are kept by the
secretary of the meetings, and are open for inspection by the
Directors.
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During the year, 24 Board meetings and 4 general meetings were
held and the individual attendance of each Director is set out
below:

AR R

FARBITUREFTRERRINBERAE
BEEZEBHFEERMT -

Meetings Attended/Meetings Held

BHEZEE SETZEER

Directors General Meeting Board Meeting
BE=s BERAE Esge;
Ms. Zheng Juhua L= 4/4 22/24
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREESE 4/4 24/24
Mr. Chen Shaohua BROZERE 3/4 23/24
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SEIRE A 4/4 23/24
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RKIAC kS 4/4 17/24
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth FEMEAE 3/4 23/24
BOARD COMMITTEES EELZEE

The Board has established 3 committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
(the “Nomination Committee”) for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference.

The majority of the members of each Board committees are
independent non-executive Directors. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
company’s expenses.
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Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises the following independent
non-executive Directors of the Company, namely:

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman)
Mr. Man Kwok Leung
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

The Audit Committee is currently chaired by Mr. Chi Chi Hung,
Kenneth, who possesses the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
which lay down clearly its authority and duties, which include the
maintaining of an appropriate relationship with independent
auditor, review of financial information and monitoring the
financial reporting system and internal control procedures.

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the followings:

(@ To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Group's staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or auditor;

(b) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures;

(c)  To review and monitor the external auditor’s independence
and objectively and the effectiveness of the audit; and

(d) To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of management, and make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of external auditor.
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The Audit Committee performed the work during the year
includes the followings:

o reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group and approved the internal control review manual
of the Group; and

o reviewed the Group’s accounting principles and practices,
financial reporting and statutory compliance matters.
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During the year, the Audit Committee convened 2 meetings. RWAEE  EXZEe@LMMAIE% - AKX E
Members and their attendance are as follows: EEFEELNT :

Director Name Attendance
EEHA HEE
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth (Chairman) EEMEE(EE) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BERE A 2/2
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RIACEAE 2/2
Remuneration Committee FMEEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following HMEE@HAQARIA NEB I IERTESH
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely: Ko DRlA

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) RIACKE ()

Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREAE

Mr. Chi Chi Hung =EERE

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee include the
followings:

(@ To review, recommend and approve the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of the
executive Directors and the senior management;

(b)  To review, recommend and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time;

(c) To review, recommend and approve the compensation
payable to executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment; and

(d)  To establish transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration
will be determined by reference to the performance of the
individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee performed the work during the
year includes the followings:

o reviewed the remuneration policy for the Directors and
senior management;

o reviewed and approved the remuneration package of each
Director and the company secretary including bonus
payment, pension right and compensation payable; and

o approved the forms of the service agreement for each
executive Director and the appointment letter for each
independent non-executive Director.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee convened 1
meeting. Members and their attendance are as follows:
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Director Name Attendance
BEENR =R
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter (Chairman) KB EE(EFE) 2/2
Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEBREE 2/2
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth EEHESE 2/2

Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee comprises the Chairman and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, namely

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Ms. Zheng Juhua

In August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee was updated. The Nomination Committee
is responsible for reviewing and assessing the Board’s
composition. In reviewing the Board’'s composition, the
Nomination Committee will consider a number of aspects of the
Board diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the
followings:

@)

To review the criteria and procedures of selection of
directors and senior management members, and provide
suggestions;

To conduct extensive search for qualified candidates of
directors and senior management members; and

To access the candidates for directors and senior
management members and provide the relevant
recommendations.

Nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by
the Nomination Committee include the followings:

in considering the nomination of new directors, the
Nomination Committee will take into account the
qualification, ability, still, knowledge, working experience,
leadership and professional ethics of the individual;

identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; and

where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an independent non-executive director at the
general meeting, it should set out in the circular to
shareholders and/or explanatory statement accompanying
the notice of the relevant general meeting why the
Nomination Committee believes the individual should be
elected and the reasons why the Nomination Committee
considers the individual to be independent.

During the year, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting.
Members and their attendance are as follows:

Director Name
EENA

AR R

Mr. Man Kwok Leung (Chairman)
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Ms. Zheng Juhua

RAZEE s ETERERENTRIE
@ BITMEEENERTEEKRKE ZZE
KRR WieHER
by EZHetERLAEELREREEE
MEZANE: &
0 EBEFELafEREKRBZREEA
WiRHIEEERESR -
RELZEGRMZIERIERF BERKEEE
T5)%I18
. F**ﬁ%%Zh%M’k%iﬁak
AEAERE - 880 - 15 A& - TE
ey REAEREERTRERKY
o MEEBEERKAESEKE Z @7
AL WEEERZEENHAZERAE
E2ERBBAANENHEBES
. EEEEAERRARAG LIREFEEEFIA
THEBYIERITER ZRFZRE - B
ERBRROBEE,REERERNEH
BEBWZHBERGAN  SIIREEE
A*Hﬁf%?ﬁUI%U/\tZFI&%&%é
SEREZANTEB LGS 2B -
ﬁﬁif h% rEeAR—AgE - HKE
Attendance
&
BEBLE(EE) 2/2
B Viid e 2/2
RIACEAE 2/2
BEIEL L 2/2



Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2014

Corporate Governance Report

AR R

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its own code regarding securities transactions by
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries and employees of
the Group who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. All the Directors
have confirmed their compliance with the codes throughout the
year.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognizing its overall responsibility in ensuring the
system of internal controls of the Company and in reviewing its
effectiveness, is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal control system to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the assets of the Group. Procedures have been
designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized used or
disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper accounting
records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with
applicable law, rules and regulations. The procedures provide a
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that material untrue
statements or losses are prevented, potential interruption of the
Group’s management system is detected, and risks existing in
the course of arriving at the Group’s objectives are properly
managed.

During the year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
been assessing and improving the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control system continuously, which covers financial,
operational, and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, in order to cope with the changing business
environment.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") and Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A.
Limited (“Lau & Au Yeung”) have been appointed as the
Company'’s external auditors since 2003.

On 15th April 2013, PwC resigned as one of the joint auditors.
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting on 3rd May 2013, Lau
& Au Yeung, being the other joint auditors, has been appointed
as the auditor.

The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature and service
charges of the non-audit services to be performed by Lau & Au
Yeung and considered that such services have no adverse effect
on the independence of their audit works.
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A summary of audit services provided by the external auditor for
the year and their corresponding remunerations is as follows:

AR R

WA - S B BATIR 4 2 B RSB I
REBEHE T

Nature of services Amount
R HE REE
HK$'000
FHIT
Audit services for the year ended 31st March 2014
BE-T--ME-A=-+—ALLFEZELRY 300
Non-audit services
IEEIZARTE 290

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Article 58 of the Company’s Bye-law state that shareholders
holding not less than one-tenth of the Company’s paid-up capital
carrying voting rights shall at all times have the right to requisition
a special general meeting to discuss specified business
transactions. To request the convening of a meeting, individuals
must send a written notice to the Board or the secretary of the
Company for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If shareholders would like to make a request to include a
resolution in the annual general meeting, they are requested to
follow the requirements and procedures as set out in Section
115A of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 32 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-fortieth of
the total voting rights or not less than 50 shareholders, may at
their expense, unless the Company otherwise resolves, propose
any resolution at any general meeting. A written notice to that
effect signed by the requisitionists together with a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in giving effect
thereto must be deposited at the Company's principal place of
business in Hong Kong at Room 1402, 14/F, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (addressed to
the company secretary) not less than six weeks before the
meeting. The notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at the meeting,
the reasons for such proposal and any material interest of the
proposing shareholder in such proposal.
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Shareholders and other stakeholders may send their enquiries
and concerns, in written form, to the Board by addressing them
to the Company’s address at Room 1402, 14/F, China Resources
Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (addressed to
the company secretary).

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
The Board recognizes the importance of continuing
communications with the Company’s shareholders and investors,
and maintains ongoing dialogues with them through various
channels. The primary communication channel between the
Company and its shareholders is through the publication of its
interim and annual reports.

The Company's registrars serve the shareholders with respect to
all share registration matters.

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Board
members and management of the Company are available to
answer shareholders’ questions and explain the procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll, if necessary. Any relevant
information and documents on proposed resolutions are
normally sent to all shareholders at least 21 clear days before the
annual general meeting.

All shareholders’” communications, including interim and annual
reports, announcements and press releases are available on the
Company’s website at www.noblecentury.hk. The latest business
developments and core strategies of the Company can also be
found on the website, keeping the communications with
investors open and transparent.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public who may contact the Company by
phone on (852) 2598 9868 during normal business hours, by fax
at (852) 2598 9878 or by e-mail at info@noblecentury.hk.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company,
through its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) were principally
engaged in vessel chartering businesses.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments is
set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st March 2014 are
set forth in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 43.

The Board did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in plant and equipment of the Group
and the Company are set forth in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set forth in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 2nd September 2013 and the
Stock Exchange granting approval of the listing of and permission
to deal in the shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the "Share Option Scheme”) on 3rd September 2013, the
Company adopted the Share Option Scheme in replacement of a
share option scheme adopted on 25th March 2003 which had
been expired on 24th March 2013.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from 2nd September 2013, unless otherwise
terminated. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
provide the Company with a flexible and effective means of
incentivizing, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to the directors, employees and other
participants of the Company and the Group.
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The exercise price, vesting period, exercisable period and the
number of shares subject to each option will be determined by
the Board at the time of grant. No option has been granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption to
the date of this report.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st March 2014, the aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company amounted to approximately HK$50.9
million (2013: Nil).

BORROWINGS
Particulars of borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31st March 2014 are set out in notes 21 to 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 99.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:
Ms. Zheng Juhua

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen

Mr. Chen Shaohua

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Man Kwok Leung

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth

In accordance with bye-law 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws, Ms.
Zheng Juhua and Mr. Man Kwok Leung will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Other than the transactions as disclosed in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party in which a director was materially
interested, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at 31st March
2014 or at any time during the year then ended.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, at no time during the year had the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, and the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The transactions as set out in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 29(c) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the
Directors as determined pursuant to the service contracts/letters
of appointment entered into between the Directors and the
Group were connected transactions which were exempt from
any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESSES
None of the Directors was considered to have interests in the
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group pursuant
to the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

At 31st March 2014, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) (a) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (b) which were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or (c) which were required, pursuant to the Code of
Practice for Securities Transaction by Directors and Designated
Employees adopted by the Company, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were are follows:

Directors’ interest in the Company:

EENRGRTHAERERE

RIZE-MF=A=1+—H ARAEELT
FITHABRREZB ZHEARRRR] RE
HEEE (EE R ES B G (75 k8
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MAMGARE LR (BERERE S K
BIRPIBRIGERXRFRRSNEFRER 2 Em
FokR) + (D) RERE 77 M B 565 352 1%
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AIZERE RN R MR P2 sk B T
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of director Number of shares shareholding  Capacity
EEnE KRB E REHLESLE S92
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 42.18%  Beneficial owner and interest

#MEgEr Lt 356,000,000 shares (Note)
e

356,000,000 A% & 17 (B =E)

Note: 356,000,000 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st March 2014, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company was interested, or
was deemed to be interested in the long and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations, which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange or recorded in
the register as aforesaid.

of a controlled company
BB ARKERRER

P 5E : 356,000,000k &P R BHIEL T2 EREm
& 2 Superb Smart Limited 34
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Share Option Scheme” section on page
31 in this annual report and note 19(c) to the consolidated
financial statement, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable a
Director to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st March 2014, so far as it is known by or otherwise
notified by any Director or the chief executive of the Company,
the particulars of the corporations or persons who had 5% or
more interests in the following long positions in the shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO or were entitled to exercise, or
control the exercise of, 10% or more of the voting power at any
general meeting of the Company (the “Voting Entitlements”) (i.e.
within the meaning of substantial shareholders of the Listing
Rules) were as follows:

Name of substantial
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Approximate
percentage of

shareholder Number of shares shareholding Capacity
TERFEHE BB R EE REMOESIL S5
Superb Smart Limited Long position 42.18%  Beneficial owner
356,000,000 shares (Note) BB A
5]
356,000,000 R& A& 15 (FfT5%)
Ms. Zheng Juhua Long position 42.18% Interest of controlled
Biggic izt 356,000,000 shares (Note) corporations
e N

356,000,000 A% A% 17 (B 5E)

Note: 356,000,000 shares were held by Superb Smart Limited, a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Zheng Juhua.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other corporations or person who, as at 31st March 2014, had
the Voting Entitlements or any interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

Pf5E : 356,000,000k &P R BHIEL T2 EREm
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Ms. Zheng Juhua, aged 42, is an Executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since April
2011. Ms. Zheng conducts a property rental and investment
business in Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China. She has
over ten years of experience in securities investment in Hong
Kong. She is the sole beneficial owner of Superb Smart Limited, a
substantial and controlling shareholder of the Company which
holds approximately 42.18% of the issued share capital. She has
not held any directorships in the last three years in any other
public company the securities of which are listed on the
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 47, holds a bachelor degree with
honours in Business Administration and a master of science
degree in Corporate Governance and Directorship. He is a fellow
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and is an
associate of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is a practicing certified public accountant and has
extensive experience in financial management, corporate finance
and corporate governance.

Mr. Chan was appointed to the Board as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer in June 2011. He is currently an
executive director of South East Group Limited (Stock code: 726).
He is also an independent non-executive director of Asia Energy
Logistics Group Limited (Stock code: 351), China Gamma Group
Limited (Stock code: 164), Jun Yang Solar Power Investments
Limited (Stock code: 397), China Sandi Holdings Limited (Stock
code: 910), Media Asia Group Holdings Limited (Stock code:
8075), U-RIGHT International Holdings Limited (Stock code: 627)
and New Times Energy Corporation Limited (Stock code: 166)
(redesignated from non-executive director with effect from 18th
May 2012). He was an executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 295) from February 2007 to November 2009
and from December 2011 to September 2013, and an
independent non-executive director of The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited (Stock code: 145) from October 2009 to
February 2011, Richly Field China Development Limited (Stock
code: 313) from February 2009 to August 2010 and Superb
Summit International Group Limited (Stock code: 1228) from April
2007 to June 2010.
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Mr. Chen Shaohua, aged 52, has extensive management
experience in The People’s Republic of China. He has over ten
years’ experience in car and spare parts trading business in Hong
Kong. He has not held any directorships in the last three years in
any public company the securities of which are listed on the
securities market in Hong Kong or overseas. He was appointed to
the Board as executive Director in June 2011.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung, aged 67, is an Independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Nomination
committee of the Company. He is a solicitor of the High Court of
Hong Kong and a civil celebrant of marriages. Mr. Man has
extensive experience in the legal practice and was appointed by
Xinhua News Agency as a district advisor between 1995 and
1997. He is currently a director of Apleichau Kai Fong Primary
School, the deputy chairman of Apleichau Kai Fong Welfare
Association, the secretary of Apleichau Promotion of Tourism
Association and the honorary legal advisor of Junior Police
Officers’ Association. Mr. Man is not related to any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Man is currently an independent non-executive director of
Guocang Group Limited (stock code: 559), Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (stock code: 295) and Climax International Company
Limited (stock code: 439). He was an independent non-executive
director of Hong Kong Life Sciences and Technologies Group
Limited (stock code: 8085) during the period from November 2009
to September 2012.

Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter, aged 63, is an Independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company since April 2011. He has over 28
years of experience in real estate and financial services
industries. Mr. Yu has a Bachelor Degree in Management from
Youngstown State University in Ohio, the United States and a
Master of Science Degree in Financial Services from American
College in Pennsylvania, the United States. Mr. Yu is @ member of
the Certified Commercial Investment Member Institute and was
the first Chinese-American elected to the board of the San
Francisco Association of Realtors. Mr. Yu worked in Pacific Union
Real Estate Company in the United States between 1980 and
1995 and held senior positions in MetLife and New York Life
Insurance Company in managing Asian customers in North
America. Mr. Yu is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders the
Company.
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Mr. Yu is currently an executive director of Kong Sun Holdings
Limited (stock code: 295) and an independent non-executive
director of China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910) and
Kingston Financial Group Limited (stock code: 1031). He was an
independent non-executive director of M Dream Inworld Limited
(stock code: 8100) during the period from July 2010 to January
2014,

Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth, aged 45, is an Independent non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Audit Committee of
the Company since April 2011. He has over 20 years of
experience in accounting and financial control area. He holds a
Bachelor of Accountancy Degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Chi is not related to any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Mr. Chi is currently an executive director of Ceneric (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 542), Guocang Group Limited (stock code:
559) and China Sandi Holdings Limited (stock code: 910). He is
also an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Life
Sciences and Technologies Group Limited (stock code: 8085),
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (stock code: 8148), China
Natural Investment Company Limited (stock code: 8250), Perfect
Shape (PRC) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1830) and L'sea
Resources International Holdings Limited (stock code: 195). He
was an executive director of M Dream Inworld Limited (stock
code: 8100) during the period from July 2010 to June 2014 and an
independent non-executive director of Interchina Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 202) during the period from
October 2011 to August 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, approximately 100% and 40% of the Group’s
turnover was attributable to the five largest customers and the
largest customer respectively. No revenue has been generated
by the Group in last year.

During the year, approximately 81.4% (2013: 78.44%) and 36.1%
(2013: 32.09%) of the Group's purchases were attributable to the
five largest suppliers and the largest supplier respectively.
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None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in the major
suppliers or customers above at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the law of
Bermuda or the Company’s bye-laws in respect of the Company’s
share capital.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s shares during the year ended 31st March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 12 to 28 of this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has complied with the sufficiency of public float
requirement under the Listing Rules at any time during the year
and as at the date of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, comprising three independent non-
executive directors, has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Lau
& Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Zheng Juhua
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26th June 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NOBLE CENTURY INVESTMENT
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Noble
Century Investment Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 98,
which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31st March 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st March 2014, and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th June 2014

Franklin, Lau Shiu Wai
Practising Certificate number: P01886
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31st March 2014 #Z —F—F=H=+—HIFF/Z

2014 2013

—E-mE —T—=F

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Fff5E FET FH&TT

Revenue WA 6 12,943 -

Cost of sales SHE KA 7 (19,308) (22,030)

Gross loss E8 (6,365) (22,030)

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary i — IR B A Al iz 26 15,242 -

Administrative expenses THRER 7 (11,945) (8,965)

Operating loss KL EE (3,068) (30,995)

Finance costs A& RN 8 (419) (414)

Loss before taxation PR R ES 18 (3,487) (31,409)

Taxation charge BMESH 9 - _

Loss and total comprehensive loss R ElE=REE AL

for the year attributable to the equity NEEBEREAES

holders of the Company 4R=E (3,487) (31,409)

Basic and diluted losses per share SREXREEEEIS 1 HK(0.44) cent HK(4.84) cent

(0.44) BAL (4.84) Al

Dividends f% & 10 - -

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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B R RLER

As at 31st March 2014 R=—E—pF=HA=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mF — =4
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M FHET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Alamignd eguipment mEREY w38 L elr2
Current assets REEE
Trade receivable FEUT AR R 16 1,385 -
Deposits, prepayments and 2  BNRIER
other receivables H b e W FRIR 3,040 4,179
Inventories =& 17 2,061 4,345
Cash and bank balances e MIRITETF 18 163,032 12,108
169,518 20,632
Total assets BEEHAE 207,353 82,354
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves B #E
Share capital ik 19 8,440 36,200
Reserves e 20 51,772 (5,196)
Total equity | MEm®®m 60212 31004
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBES
Amount due to a director B —REEFIB 21 - 14,258
Amount due to a former director B —ZAIE B KIE 22 - 27,398
- 41,656

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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HhEmAME

As at 31st March 2014 R-—E—mF=H=+—H

2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Fff5E FET T
Current liabilities REEE

Trade payables FETER TR 24 3,600 6,001

Accruals, other payables and JEETER « HAER
deposit received FIAK B WIS 1,503 3,693
Amount due to a related company JE — AR A R 5K IE 23 41 -
Amount due to a director JEN—REEHIE 21 756 =
Proceeds from rights issue AR P15 FRIR 25 141,241 -
147,141 9,694
Total liabilities =Rif ik 147,141 51,350
Total equity and liabilities ERkEEHE 207,353 82,354
Net current assets REBEERE 22,377 10,938
Total assets less current liabilities EEZREBERRADER 60,212 72,660

Zheng Juhua Chan Chi Yuen
I A3
Director Director
E EBF

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these |WEGAMBHREBSEHNFEIIEIRE 2
consolidated financial statements. EEa

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 98 were #HRNFABEBE 2 G M KHRREN ==
approved by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2014 and were —PUEXNA -+ ANBEES SR ELIEES
signed on its behalf. 2,



Balance Sheet

Rk

As at 31st March 2014 R=—E—pF=HA=+—H
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2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo F&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG 5 15 38,271 32,441
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and %S BNRIER
other receivables H o e U I8 2,124 169
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE I /B A B FIE 15 - 3,000
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHER 18 161,575 11,116
163,699 14,285
Total assets BEHAE 201,970 46,726
EQUITY Ea
Capital and reserves BEXK#E
Share capital f% 19 8,440 36,200
Reserves e 20 50,867 (4,235)
Total equity R EE 59,307 31,965
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liability FnBEE
Amount due to a director B —REEFIE 21 - 14,258
- 14,258
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FEETE A R EAh
NG 666 503
Amount due to a director B —REEHIA 21 756 =
Proceeds from rights issue MR P RIE 25 141,241 =
,,,,,,,, 142,663 503
Total liabilities aEf® 142,663 14,761
Total equity and liabilities EaRkaEEH 201,970 46,726
Net current assets RBEEFE 21,036 13,782
Total assets less current liabilities EEAEBERAHERS 59,307 46,223

Zheng Juhua

MG
Director

Chan Chi Yuen
Director

EF

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 98 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2014 and were

signed on its behalf.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
SR AR S W R

For the year ended 31st March 2014 #Z —F—F=H=+—HIFF/Z

(Accumulated
losses)/
Retained
Share Share  Contributed earnings
capital premium surplus  (25tE8),/ Total
N R ERE EdRH RERF @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THET TAT THEL THET
At 1st April 2012 RZE——&NA—H 30,200 29,093 — (26,120) 33,173
Comprehensive loss 2HEE
Loss for the year ~EEBRE = - - (31,409) (31,409)
Transactions with owners BREBAZRS
Placing of new shares RRERR 6,000 24,000 - - 30,000
Transaction costs attributable BIMRDEL
to issue of new shares TR - (760) - - (760)
At 31st March 2013 R-E—=6=A=+—H 36,200 52,333 = (57,529) 31,004
At 1st April 2013 RZE—=FMA—H 36,200 52,333 - (57,529) 31,004
Comprehensive loss 2EEE
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (3,487) (3,487)
Transactions with owners BREBEAZRS
Placing of new shares EREFRH 6,000 27,600 - - 33,600
Transaction costs attributable Bk DELS
to issue of new shares T HHA - (905) - - (905)
Capital reduction BB (33,760) - 33,760 - -
Share premium cancellation MR BT - (79,028) 79,028 - -
Transfer to set-off accumulated BRI R
losses B - - (61,730) 61,730 -
At 31st March 2014 R-ZB-—ME=A=+—H 8,440 = 51,058 714 60,212

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these IWEHSEAMBHREBSHNEI9ZE98H 7 [t
consolidated financial statements. &F o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

iy BT BE AR

For the year ended 31st March 2014 & &2 —=%F—F = =+—HIFF/Z

2014 2013
—E-NF —T—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FET T
Cash flows from operating activities K& IHRELTE
Net cash used in operations KEXRFAE S F5E  28() (18,684) (30,148)
Net cash used in operating activities EEZEBmAARLFE | (18,684)  (30,148)
Cash flows from investing activities RKREZIZHHEESRE
Purchase of plant and equipment YNGR (38,385) -
Net cash inflow on disposal of HE—RNBARZIRE
a subsidiary mAEEE 26 38,838 -
Net cash generated from investing RETEHME
_activites ReR®E 43 -
Cash flows from financing activities ®BETIEHHEESRE
Proceeds from placing of new shares e & A% (0 BT 1S 5 E 33,600 30,000
Proceeds from rights issue received TAN AT HAR AT I8
in advance 141,241 -
Shares issue costs A&7 BT AN (905) (760)
Increase in amount due to a former B —RAIEERIE
director N 8,721 19,351
Decrease in amount due to a director FE—RESZRIERD (13,502) (9,330)
Net cash generated from financing RESEE TS
_activites Re®® 169,155
Net increase in cash and ReERBLEEEHR
cash equivalents EnFEE 150,924 9,113
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUzRE MRS
of the year ZEIERE 12,108 2,995
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRZ2EESRES
of the year £EEH 18 163,032 12,108

The notes on pages 49 to 98 are an integral part of these IWEHSEAMBHREBSHNEI9ZE98H 7 [t
consolidated financial statements. &F o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Noble Century Investment Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton II, Bermuda. The principal
place of business in Hong Kong is situated at Room 1402,
14/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally engaged in vessel chartering. The principal
activity of the Company is investment holding.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 26th June 2014.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at a special general meeting held on 4th
March 2014, the capital structure of the Company had been
restructured by:

(i)  the reduction of the issued share capital of the
Company through a cancellation of the paid-up
capital of the Company to the extent of HK$0.04 on
each of the issued shares so that the nominal value
of each issued share will be reduced from HK$0.05 to
HK$0.01 (the “Capital Reduction”),

(i) the subdivision of each authorised but unissued
share of HK$0.05 into five shares of HK$0.01 each;

(i) the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company
as at 30th September 2013 in the sum of
HK$79,028,000 (the “Share Premium Cancellation”);

(iv) the transfer of the credit arising from the Capital
Reduction and the Share Premium Cancellation to the
contributed surplus account of the Company; and

(v) the utilization of the contributed surplus account of
the Company to offset the entire balance of the
accumulated losses of the Company as at 28th
February 2014.

A 15 S R Mk

—RER

CHEEZERERAR(ART]) E—
RRBREFMEZZERAR @ RE
BEERXSMARAR ([BRA]) ER
0 o AR Al = A7 Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton II,
Bermuda r ER/EBETE XMW A B
BB B26REFRNE14E1402E ©

ARm R ENERR (G AEE])E
EREMMEE - ARAFETEXEBRE

S -

BSEEBI REEARBRENSE
T([87E)) 251 - REBAMBRRE
NoE-—MEXA-HAAREERH
TR -

BRAEH

BER_T-—HF=AWARTZRE
FRIKSEARRRBIRBBZ R HIRZ
B ARBENEBCDEBATHAE
A

()  HIRARRZEHETERA BB
HARRFRE BTN 2B R
RO.O4ET  SEREBTRMNZ
EE 0.05/8 TR = 0.0178 7T ([ X
AR ¢

(i) HSEEA0.058 T 2 ETEERET
&1 B A% 17 48 A& T A% & IXE E 0.01
B,

(i) FHR-_T—=FAA=THIR
RABREER EZ 2B ERA
#0/379,028,0007 7T (I A7 4 B &
1)

(iv) HERRABDR RO & EEHEAEA
ZHERFREBRERNNA 2 EHAG
R &

V) BRARAZEHEBEREAA
AR—ZE—WF_-_A -+ N\BZR5
E5i8 2 BBl 44 o
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group'’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are disclosed in note 5
below.

3 FEEHHERSE

RAREHEEMBERERARAZIIEE
AABEREIN T X - RABERI - I
ERENAEZRFERNERE -

3.1

AEBZFEEMBRRIIZBER
Gt A ((BREMAE]) R
o2 BEM B HwEERN ([ FEHB

SEER ) MRS o I - A
BHRRBEBRAES EHRAIK
BB RAEGIFTHE 2 BRABE -
AR B P MRIIRIBE LA
FRUARR -

BN B BBV RE LR Z 75
BRFBEERE TERSE
EEEITHENEARNEE ST
RBEPITEEHE - PREEH
Bk BiE s BE - 05 MBI
BREBREARRZ LG BER
TXHIES W
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3 FESHERBE®)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 BEEE)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the (@) AEEEHRAZHIRLEE
Group: FTZER

T3 FTET AR R ¥ AR 2 &
SR —E—=FmMA—HFH
e e S = R/
A BEASEEWES K

The following new standards and amendments
to standards are mandatory for the first time for
the financial year beginning 1st April 2013 but
do not have a material impact on the Group:

-
Annual Improvement Annual Improvements FEMENE  ZTTNEE
Project 2009-2011 Cycle T ——FRH
ZEE N
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial BbeEl  BBERRIES
Statements — Presentation F1RBITA)  —Et2Eka
of Items of Other EE 25
Comprehensive Income
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits #ieEl  EEEA
F 195
(ZF——%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements Bt & BUBHRR
F2%:
(Z2——F)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and B QLR REERRRAE
Joint Ventures £ 285 rEZRE
(Z2——%)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)  First-time Adoption on BANGREEN HBNETER
Government Loan F1R(ETR)  F
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)  Financial instruments: BBUHREEE SRIE: KB
Disclosures — Offsetting ETR(BITR) HHESBEAE
Financial Assets and LemafE
Financial Liabilities
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial ERUEREED GAVBRR
Statements £10%
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements EBRBREEN AERE
F11%
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests EBUEREED RBEMES
in Other Entities F12% Va3
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 Consolidated Financial EREBREEN SAUBHRER.
and HKFRS 12 Statements, Joint F10% - &8 BETH R
(Amendments) Arrangements and oy it il EEE /R
Disclosure of Interest in BNHREE BERD
Other Entities; Transition SRS LS
Guidance F125 (BTK)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement BAMBHEEN ATEAE
135
HK(FRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the B (ARG BRE BARSAED
Production Phase of 2EZ8g) B

a Surface Mine

—REF0%
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

()

The following new, revised or amended
standards and interpretations have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1st April 2013 and have not been
early adopted.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and  Hedge Accounting and
HKAS 39 Amendments to HKFRS 9,
(Amendments) HKFRS 7 and HKAS 393

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 Investment Entities’

and HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral
Accounts?

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits —

(Amendments) Defined Benefit Plans:
Employee Contributions?
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
(Amendments) Presentation — Offsetting
Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’
HKAS 36 Impairment of Asset —
(Amendments) Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets’
HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives
(Amendments) and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting’
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies'

Annual Improvements
Projects

Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?

Annual Improvements
Projects

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2014.

z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July 2014.

9 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2016.

FESTHRBE 2
3.1 REEE(E)
b)  BATHET - EIETSREIER

EARZEEEM  BERZ
T-=—FMA—HRHKZH
BERMREN  AEEW
RIBFERM

BENBREEN SRIA
F9%,

BEANBRERA HAGHAREA
F9% BARUE  HBRSEN
BERRETR  B9% BEUK
REEGER HEETHR
FRR(BIX)  BREGHER

LR A HE

FEMBREEN RAERZE
105  BEUH

REERF 125
REEGHER
FAHETK)
BENGREEN ETETRA’
FU%
BbesrEd EERF—
£1957(2011) REBHEE
(BFIA) BRI
BbesrEd SRIA:
ERHRETN) 25 —HKHew
EEREHER
T
BbesrEd BEREER—
FIRETE)  FepiEzTR
e HE
Bzl TETEAEER
FRETA) HHSHELE
T
5 (BRHBRE HE
2EZE9)
-REE1%
FEMETE “F-TEZR
—E-—FRH
ZEE I
FEMETE —F——f%
—Z—=FRH
ZEE I

! MN-Z—FE—H— Bk
RER FEHRAER -

? R-Z—FEEH—HBHIA
& FAtA 2 AR -

3 AR R TE 58 Il 1 A R H BB
A TR -

¢ MRZZE—RFE—H—Bx®IHA
REA FEHRAERR -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3 FESHEFEHE 2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 3.1 RBEE(E)
(b)  (Continued) by (&)

The Group has already commenced an ANEB D B S ST (G B AN it
assessment of related impact of adopting the HET A ET S S B
above new, revised or amended standards and pRBEUYAEE  HBY
interpretations to the Group. The Group is not 2o NEE Y KT TE ANE
yet in a position to state whether substantial B erBERESER
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and xrZ2YVeTZEMmMEREKR
presentation of the consolidated financial BE) o

statements will be resulted.

3.2 Subsidiaries 3.2 WEAT
3.2.1Consolidation 3.2.184
The consolidated financial statements include RIZA BB REBIEARA T
the financial statements of the Company and all REFMENEBAREZ= A
of its subsidiaries made up to 31st March. A =+ B I EEE o —
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured RSB B A 5] 48 72~ & B A 12 4|
entity) over which the group has control. The HrER(pEEBILLE
group controls an entity when the group is ) wAREFREAEREZE
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns B 7 E 0] % O] 3R 1 R B Bk
from its involvement with the entity and has the ZTEN R RAERS TE
ability to affect those returns through its power e N BB HY TR S
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated 220 | & o] SRAE - AN £2 B Bl
from the date on which control is transferred to AR D = NI e
the group. They are deconsolidated from the HiEEEEARERE Y BEE
date that control ceases. AR MR IR 2
RANF RS AR ©
(@  Business combinations (@) EBEp
The Group applies the acquisition method REBUWE S £ A
to account for business combinations. HIRAHEABE o U BE—
The consideration transferred for the KB AR FTEEAE
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair APTEEEE - WA
values of the assets transferred, the FRIEGAEL AR
liabilities incurred to the former owners of T 7N &= [E B 25 1T IR A A
the acquiree and the equity interests HTANFEHE - i
issued by the Group. The consideration R EAIERARARER
transferred includes the fair value of any BEAZIRBESA
asset or liability resulting from a B2 AEME- - XKL
contingent consideration arrangement. (e BT Uk B AT =5 RIS B
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities VA R 4 8 8 K Bk oA
and contingent liabilities assumed in a BE VP HEKES
business combination are measured HATFEFE - A&H
initially at their fair values at the BT ERI IR - 7
acquisition date. The Group recognises N E ki IEE RS
any non-controlling interest in the UL BE Al S R E E
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition ECHERASEEN
basis, either at fair value or at the non- LB - RESARA UL BE
controlling interest’s proportionate share AR FEIE AR RS o

of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Business combinations (Continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date, any
gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be
transferred by the Group is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of
the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive income. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and
the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If
the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the income
statement.

3 FEEHEHME @

3.2 MBAR (&)
321586 (#&)

@

RBEE0 (B)
A B W R PR AR I E A
3 o

fisd € 75 & 0f 0 B& BOE
17 WBHERREZ
WUCES 77 OIS B
ZEHERKBAND
REEHTEHILERN
STEMESENEREE
E/\\\?E%ﬁq:ﬁﬁﬂm °©

RNEB FrEEE MR
REBERBEEREA
FEER - HHE A
QF_}ZET 5 A RE
RNEEREES  Bi%
REBZEERIF 3958
2T ERAEEBTm
Hih2HER=ED) o
HAEZ CIAREH
HEHFTE MERLE
ERERAR -

BEAORE  WKES
Z AT SEFR A A 26 DA I
WURRE 7 2 (210 il
mAENRE B A ERB
3B FEAG AT UL AT B RRF
BEAFENEE  F
REE - REREM
5 ERAREEE B
HERR 2 FRTE i 25 K A
ERE 2 s 2 BRRIE
RPTW B B A RHE
ENAFE ZEZ8E
BREWmRPER -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuead)
3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
3.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

3 FTEEHEHME @

3.2 MBAR (&)
321586 (#&)

(@)  Business combinations (Continued) @ EHEG(E)
Intra-group transactions, balances and SBEAQAZHENR
unrealised gains on transactions between P BHRERH 2 KRE
group companies are eliminated. R B E I o K&
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. REBENEHEHE - &
When necessary, amounts reported by BRER - B A AHR
subsidiaries have been adjusted to HHRIEDEL FHEE -
conform with the group’s accounting IFFE AR BRI
policies. & o

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in (b)  TEBKLEZEHEZ M
subsidiaries without change of control BRAER RS
Transactions with non-controlling PNEHKRELESIE ZIE
interests that do not result in loss of TR S R H ARRYIME
control are accounted for as equity EmR5—BNEER
transactions — that is, as transactions MEBARBEEAZED
with the owners of the subsidiary in their BB NETRS © 1
capacity as owners. The difference AIERE AT EEAR
between fair value of any consideration WS R G B A R
paid and the relevant share acquired of BEEFERASEZE
the carrying amount of net assets of the K5 VERER o [MFEIZERR
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or s & 2 W sk B 18
losses on disposals to non-controlling MBI ERE RS ©
interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries © HENEBELA

When the Group ceases to have control,
any retained interest in the entity is re-
measured to its fair value at the date
when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

ARG O 2 PR A B
RERE 2 EARE S
BAREEGIRERZA
FEEHGE  ARAK
H{EZ SRR ER
ERARIIEBEZE R
A AELERNERE
ENREED  HQF
BERMNEREE- It
Sh - SERTR E A 2
sHEREZEERRA
Z S BIRB AL
BoERHWERREE
HABZHTAARR M
ARERRERAERME
E TR SHEE

Mo BRERE -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

3.2.2 Separate financial statements

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
dividends from these investment if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

3.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Board
of Directors that makes strategic decisions.

3.4

Foreign currency translation

(@

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group'’s entities are measured using
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK dollars
("HK$") which is the Company's functional and
the Group's presentation currency.

3 FEEHEHME @

3.2

3.3

3.4

MEAT (&)

3.22 B BB HE
RARBEEABERA B
M B A Bl 2 18 B A AN H0 Bk
BWEAR - KA BIERE
EEEBMLERAEA - WBARZ
FERARAIERE M EWR
FRIENEE °

fief P B B H T /B8 2 R B R AR
EHEMNEER SRR %
BB HRERFPRERE
BRLGEMBERERMATR
BEHSREERE(EERE)
ZERHEE " MARBEZFER
BWEUR SR - HRE A
BIZEEITRER -

DTEER
EENRRRERNTIELERREA
Rt AERHRE — Bz T A HE -
EXEeRERRTIELERRA
BENRBERIFEREN R R
IH o

ShEmE
(@) MERZIIEH
AEEBETNEER MR
RFFPIRBHRABHER
LEMREM T ELHERE
BRAZEE(HEEE )R
ATEEM - SR P BIRERIA
A(DET]) 2% MAT
BARBZYEEERARE
BZ258% -
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3 FESHHEEME®
3.4 hEBmE(E)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (b) RBREER
Foreign currency transactions are translated INERGILRZ 5 E AEEXB
into the functional currency using the exchange BEENEEE #EZER
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. ZUARBIHINEFEEBEE
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting LBRRFRERREES
from the settlement of such transactions and ZER W REE G
from the translation at year-end exchange rates Rk HE 2 E RS RIER o
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

(c) Group companies (c) &£EAF

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

— assets and liabilities for each balance

DREEBEZIEE TR
PMEAREETER XS
K B B AR LI AR IA S T3 A 1
EREJNNEE

— RBEEAGBRMEIE

sheet presented are translated at the ENBEHYNZEESR
closing exchange rate at the date of that BREERH 2 HEX
balance sheet; e

— income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average
exchange rates; and

— all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translate at the closing rate. Exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

— JEZLHMEENKE

THERRE &

— ez YINEBRE

£ A 2 E S
i o

HKEEIINEEBMELNE
BRAAEHAE  9ELA
e ERNEERAE
WRBHERRE - EERN
ERERAEEMEEKES
FERR ©
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, a disposal involving loss of joint
control over a joint venture that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
significant influence over an associate that
includes a foreign operation), all of the currency
translation differences accumulated in the
equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not
result in the group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are reattributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposal (that
is, reductions in the group’s ownership interest
in associates or joint ventures that do not result
in the group losing significant influence or joint
control) the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified
to profit or loss.

3 FESHHEEME®
3.4 hEBmE(E)

(d)

HEBMRBER B RS L
&
HEBIER (AL EREE
RBINEB 2 25w X
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RN BEINER 2 KRAE
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T SRR BEBIER
BERRREEATES
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RIRERB ARG ZEHM
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3 FESHHEEME®
SEREM

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)

3.5 Plant and equipment 3.5

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow
to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of both owned and leased plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values
over the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Machinery and equipment 10-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Vessel 10-20 years

When a vessel is acquired, the costs of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed
at the next dry-docking are identified and depreciated
over the period to the next estimated dry-docking
date. Costs incurred on subsequent dry-docking of a
vessel are capitalised and depreciated over the
period to the next estimated dry-docking date.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date. The carrying amount is written
down immediately to its recoverable amounts if the
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

R R B MR SR AR R At T B
HERFRETIR - ELRARIER
BEEEEBAEZFAX -

2 HEER M ARREENE Tm
MAREE - DA B ERRANBE A 52
B HERAT G ABELZ
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REUHRER © FTA M@ E RIRE
ERELZVMRHRESSER R
Hitp 2 EURE R ©

BERBERBEREVEUESE
BLEAHET A F B E R A E D
REHFIREBETENE o B5tH
FERAFHRMT :
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RAREE 54
B 54
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BT R@ER - YR EEHE TR

TRISHEE A SRt BT E -
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Other long-lived assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the income statement. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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3 FESHHEEME®
3.8 2RMEEZRE

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of asset is reduced and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under
the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
3.9 Trade and other receivables

3 FESHERBE®)
3.9 FEUBRFR I H b e UL FRIE

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtors,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinguency in
payments are considered indicators that the
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the
use of an allowance account, and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
“administrative expenses”. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account for trade receivable. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

3.10 Inventories

Inventories comprise bunkers on board of vessels,
lubricating oil and marine products and are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses. Bunkers will be used for the
operation of the vessel, therefore the bunkers are not
written down to net realisable value when the market
price falls below cost if the overall shipping activity is
expected to be profitable.

U BR RN E A R W R IR A PR A
FEER  ERABRNXERSE
HERARBRERESE - EAE
LSRR SN SL PSR- 170 G
TRRA R B = 8RR R - AR
JRE M B R e L At FE MK RR TR R SRR B
B -

B ATRERNM R - EHA
Al BEAR A S 1T A5 A R R RE LD
HIgiE RIE R BRI BB R
HBREBEZTR - BBESBEREE
BRI (B B2 R4 BIR A AT 2
AAARRBAESREREZHNER
AEEE < REEEBERRER
TR - MEBEEEIINGEIR
m R B s R AR (1T
BER] - &RKERTAYKE -
SRR 2 BB AR T I - 1
HIZWE S RIFsE < 258 - RIA
REBHGS R MEMEEKRER
Rz [TTHRER] -

3.10 FE

FEBEM LREFRRE - #h &
BERM - WRAARAERFEE
ME P EEIEE AfR AR T
FHIDERE - AIRBRFERER
FBEBBEP ZAETHEE  BE
R ZBHEEM - REHE AR M
fIEZR - Btk - ITRHERERE
BRAIBRARN - B M5 ERERK
AREF - A BRI & WO = AT
HFE -



CIRIE B AR A E] @ 2014 F F 3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held
at call with banks and bank overdrafts. In the
consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

3.12 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

3.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary
course of business from suppliers. Accounts payable
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

3.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one
item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
3.15 Current and deferred income tax

3 FESHHEEME®
3.15 BNH RIEFEFT 8%

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements.

However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. The
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred taxation is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred taxation asset is realised or the
deferred taxation liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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3 FESHERBE®)
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
3.15 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

3.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and
services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. The Group recognises revenue when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to
the entity and specific criteria have been met.
Revenue is shown net of sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

Revenue from voyage chartering of vessel are
recognised on a percentage of completion basis.

Sale of goods is recognised on the transfer of risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered to
customers and the title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

3.17 Employee benefits

(@) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leaves are not recognised
until the time of leave.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.17 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Retirement scheme obligations
A Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) has been set up for all employees of
the Group in accordance with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. Under the
rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are required to make contributions
to the MPF scheme at 5% of the employees’
gross earning with a ceiling of HK$1,250 per
month.

Contributions to the MPF scheme are expensed
as incurred and the assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to a termination when
the entity has a detailed formal plan to
terminate the employment of current
employees without possibility of withdrawal. In
the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundantly the termination benefits
are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer.
Benefits falling due more than twelve months
after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.

3.18 Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessors are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessors are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

3 FTEEHEHME @

3.17 BERA (&)

(b)

(c)

RGBSR
AEBRBERHMERTBESE
BRPI R E R BRI
HRAEeE B[ &E 2
gl REBERTEZR
- BEREEAZERS
F BRERUZ A 5% %58 T8 © 5t 8
fER R - ERAE A 1,250
BT e

[ 38 7 & 5T BRI Z R
EERE Mt zEE
FR—EBLER2ES
HAKBZEENFFTE -

B A
BRENREETHELRR
KRB AT AN SR B IE T 1EsX
BT EREXBRAREGE
LEAR A B A 2 /@ Fl) o A&
B & AR i B A R AGE TR
ez EREAFERILE
FRBRBE T 2 BN R
@A o ERX B B FERERG
BT 2RI B8R
BEFEXAEZETHA
AE - REERRI2MEA A
ERBBZBAMGHAEER
B~

3.18 &ML
FrE R Z KER ) R Ko [ 3 e th
ARE 2 HOBDBRE L
RIBEEMAN 2 RRENR B
HAAMER 2 (ETE2E 1R - K
FHUNEREIN G RRRE S
E M ER R S8



CIRIE B AR A E] @ 2014 F F 3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and
Company's financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3.20 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, they will then be
recognised as a provision.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to liquidity risk, credit
risk, interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. The
overall risk management programme of the Group
focuses on the unpredictability of the financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group.

(@) Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed for each
operating entity of the Group and are
aggregated by the Group finance department.
The Group finance department monitors rolling
forecasts of the Group’s liquidity requirements
to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing
facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where
applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.
Such forecasting takes into consideration the
Group’s debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal balance
sheet ratio targets and, if applicable external
regulatory or legal requirements.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved) 4 BIiSEMER &)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIERABEZ=#E)
(a) Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) "RBELERRE)
The table analyses the Group’s and the TEBERLEEREAHT
Company's financial liabilities into relevant AR 2 R HBREEAER K
maturity groupings based on the remaining AATIZzEMmBEES AE
period at the balance sheet date to the BE|EA4E R - EAFTIHES
contractual maturity date. The amounts WAAMNKRILEBESRE o

disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Group KEE
Less than Between
1year 1and 2 years
DPR1E 1225
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
At 31st March 2014 R-ZE—F
=H=r=E
Trade payables FERTER R 3,600 -
Accruals, other payables FEETER - Hity
and deposit received FER I R EWiES 1,503 -
Amount due to a related company & —EHREE R B FUE a1 =
Amount due to a director B —REEHIAE 756 =
Proceeds from rights issue (Note) A% AT1S 7138 (FisE) 141,241 -
147,141 =
At 31st March 2013 RZE—=%F
=A=+—8H
Trade payables FERTER SR 6,001 -
Accruals, other payables JEETER « HAtb
and deposit received FERRIERE Wi e 3,693 =
Amount due to a director N —RBEEFHIE = 14,258
Amount due to a former director B —RAIESEHIE = 27,398
9,694 41,656
Note: This amount has been reclassified to the equity of Mt h&BER T —NFWmA
the Company upon completion of the Rights Issue —HERTEHEENSEE

on 3rd April 2014. RS o
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

(b)

()

4

BERERERE 5
4.1 BEEBREZE(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) (@) FBHELRAM (&)
Company ¥ NN
Less than Between
1year 1and 2 years
DPR1F 1225
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
At 31st March 2014 EA:;—EE*HHL =]
Accruals and other payables FERTE A M E b e I8 666 -
Amount due to a director JEH FHEENA 756 =
Proceeds from rights issue WA AT 3R A (FF uf)
(Note) 141,241 -
142,663 -
At 31st March 2013 RZZE—=F=HA=+—H
Accruals and other payables FEETE R & B Ath FE S 5/ 503 =
Amount due to a director B —REERIEB = 14,258
503 14,258
Note: This amount has been reclassified to the equity of MizE : BN —MmENA
the Company upon completion of the Rights Issue —HERTEKEETDEE
on 3rd April 2014. P o

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to
its cash and bank balances, trade receivables,
deposits, prepayments and other receivables.
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is
the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

To manage this risk, management has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, management reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable to ensure that adequate impairment
provision is made for the irrecoverable
amounts.

The credit risk on deposits with bank is limited
because deposits are in banks with sound
credit ratings.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group was not exposed to
significant interest rate risk as at 31st March
2014 and 2013 as there was no variable interest
bearing borrowings at the balance sheet date.

(b) FERR
AEERERS RRITHE
7 BUWER ?ﬁ/i\&ﬁi\fm
PR IB M AR EE R
Z’S‘igﬁﬂzﬁﬁii“f
RAETRHEEZRMEE

REBILRER  BEEE—H
ERAHERERF  UEFRAR
HERETE W @B REE -
s - B E E AR AT & (A
Rl W AR Rz AT e () &
VA RE R BE S0 30 1 B UQ [0 & B8
1EH R SR ERA -

ROTEFRZEERBRER
AR%EFS i’]ﬁﬁ&ﬁéﬁﬁ
I EERIARZIRTT

() RIEmEMR
REBZRERSMERNK
EASEMERNEESHZE -
HﬂEAE%%EIﬂWg
& Eik e
*E&*iﬁfzﬁ
=+— BRI ESEAFEE,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk
The Group'’s exposure to foreign exchange risk
primarily arises from US dollar ("US$")
denominated assets and liabilities. The foreign
exchange risk exposure is not significant to the
Group as HK$ is pegged with US$ under the
existing Hong Kong economic environment.

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity,
amounts due to a director and a former director. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. The
total debt to equity ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including amounts due to a director and
a former director) less cash and bank balances. The
net debt to equity ratio decrease significantly because
of the completion of a placing of new shares and
proceeds received in advance from Rights Issue in
aggregate of approximately HK$173,948,000 and
decrease in amounts due to a director and a former
director of HK$40,900,000. The total debt to equity
ratio at 31st March 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

4

A 15 S R Mk

MEERER#)
4.1 BiREKBEZR(E)
(d) sEmEE
AEBEIBASINET(TE
TNEEEERA G2 IMNE

4.2

R AR - HRREFEL
WERET - X iEE T
53+ Et AN &= [ 3 8 & K S0

B o
EXEBER
AEEEREAZ BERREAE
BAERERE 2N HMAKRR

AR -

AEBZEARRBBIEER BN
—ZEER—RAESRIE - Ak
HoNAEEAREE  AEEXSH
BYNTREZBRESHERHESR
ELRDEER - NEENE B E
EEREN o BEATEEREITL R
AEFERBERTE AEFE
NEEE(BREN—REER—
HEEERIA)RIRE MIRTET
ATE - AEFHEEESLLREET
B 52 PR PR SERK BE & AR (5 K 3R AT IR
B AR FTS FRIE A ££49 173,948,000
BILREN—ZEER—RAIES
X I8 T B& 40,900,000 78 c R=F
—MER-_T—=F=A=+—H
2 BEABEEERLEENT ¢

2014 2013
—E-E —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&ET T

Amounts due to a director and BN —REEN—F
a former director BIESEIAE 756 41,656
Less: Cash and bank balances B REe RIRITETT (163,032) (12,108)
Net debt BEFE (162,276) 29,548
Total equity B 60,212 31,004
Net debt to equity ratio BEFEEERLE N/A RER 95.30%
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved) 4 BIiSEMEE &)

4.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying amount of the Group's financial assets
and liabilities, including cash and bank balances,
trade receivables, deposits, prepayment and other
receivables, trade payables, accruals, other payables
and deposit received, proceeds from rights issue,
amount due to a related company and amount due to
a director is approximate to their fair values.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Estimated useful lives and residual values

4.3 DAFEME

rEBEZERHEERBE(BRER
S RRITET  BUER R -
TEfT B R E AW IR BT ER
M EETER - HEMZREEE
Wiz ~ HERFTS KT8 « BN —E
AEARIRIELEN—RBREER
) 2 EmMEEENFERE °

BEEGAE R A

et RAE e T E G - LB EER
REMARSER  BRERERER
REFELRERGE TR -

AEB YRR A RER - B
HibE 2 #RTE  BRARE B8L8
HAMERERER - ¥ TEMKEE
ZAERBEAEAYE 5 RER
SR -

(@) MMz fbat AR FHRRER

of vessel BEaE
Management estimates useful lives of the vessel EEEINRENER Y EBERL
by reference to the Group’s business model, HEEESEHE 17280 - BE

its assets management policy, the industry practice,
expected usage of the assets, expected repair and
maintenance, the technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in the market.
Management determines the estimated residual
value for its vessel based on the current scrap values
of steels in an active market at each measurement
date since management decides to dispose of the
fully depreciated vessel as scrap steels. Residual
values of the vessel is determined based on prevailing
market values for equivalent aged assets taking into
account the condition of the relevant assets and
other economic considerations. Depreciation expense
would be significantly affected by the useful lives and
residual values of the vessel as estimated by
management.

BEHRE  BHEERRE AW
SRR EEB R mE
th fAstMs A ERES - AR
BEERERZHITEZMMIES
BEHHE - FtERERENSET
ERMEEREM S 2 REEREER
EEEMMAFRERE - MRk
BEDREAFRKKEE 2R
MEERE » st hBREEZNN
REMEEEREE - EEEMH
SHAR AR Z T8 A 6 H K R SR B E
HITEERAEATE -
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
(b) Estimated impairment of vessel

The Group’s major operating asset is represented by
the vessel. Management performs review for
impairment of the vessel whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts of these assets may not be recoverable.
Management considered there was no impairment

5 EESIHAFTRHAE @)
(b) AR > E R E

AEBZTELBEERMM - i
BRESHHBANEMAEPRE
Rz BREE R SRR AT E 2
EfE - B E SR FLRENT
- EEERRHMH R AAREE
wmRBMMERRA - MW EIFR

indicator on the carrying value of vessel as it T AREEEELRME -
generates revenue and cash inflow to the Group.
(c) Income taxation (c) FriB%

The Group is engaged in the vessel chartering
business and may be subject to various taxes in
different jurisdictions depending on the route of the
vessel. The Group has not recognised any taxation
liability as the vessel chartering operation undertaken
by the Group is not subject to the taxation of any
jurisdictions.

AEBREMMESER  BIH
M21T12 - BRIEE TR AEER
AR TRBIE - RIFEIEE 2 H
B - REBEMRRE 2 MPEEE
BANER ADEERAMTIR - 8
A KB AREREFABIREE -
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6

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6

Revenue recognised during the year:

WAR 7 BEFR
RENBRZMAMT -

2014 2013
—E-mF —z—=

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT

Vessel chartering revenue AR E WA

12,943 =

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of
Directors reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management
determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to nature of the operations.
Each of the Group’s reportable segments represents a
strategic business unit that is subject to risks and returns
that are different from other reportable operating segment.

The Group is principally engaged in vessel chartering and
there is no separate reporting segment apart from the
vessel chartering.

The Board of Directors considers all assets and operations
is carried out worldwide and its revenue and assets cannot
be allocated into any meaningful geographical location.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on their underlying profit, which
is measured by profit before taxation.

RARAFREZSERIELEREA &
RS S Ak e R A T R R
DEER - ERENREERES D E
BORE -

AEE 2 REXGRBLRE RIRE
HEELBYIERE AEERAZHRK
EOBRR —EARBIMEREBEL - Fr&
XERBRREREFHINEMBEEREED

-

AEETENEMMEE  BHBEE
S BB A2 W|OME o

EZeRRMEEEREBEMER
B EWAREBEREDREEFAAE
BEIMWEDHE -

EFERBEENRZENFEER
B R T ERBATRF



CIRIE B AR A E] @ 2014 F F 3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A 15 S R Mk

6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 WARSDEER &)

(Continued)
(a) Segment information (a) nEER
Year ended and as at
31st March 2014
BE-Z-WNE=A=+—H
LFERR-Z—MF
=A=+-H
Vessel
chartering Total
MR E et
HK$'000 HK$'000
Segment revenue and results PRWBARES FExT FHET
Revenue WA 12,943 12,943
Segment results DREEER (7,200) (7,200)
Corporate expenses TERAY (11,529)
Operating loss K ESIE (18,729)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary s —EHBA R 15,242
Loss before taxation PR Al &5 18 (3,487)
Taxation BE -
Loss for the year REEEE (3,487)
Segment assets and liabilities THEEERERS
Non-current assets FERIEE
Plant and equipment A R B 36,254 36,254
Current assets mENE E 4,313 4,313
Segment assets DHEEE 40,567 40,567
Unallocated: ROE :
Cash and bank balances e RRTTET 163,032
Others Hih 3,754

Total assets per balance sheet BEBEREEREE 207,353
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6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION ¢ WARSHEER »)
(Continued)
(@) Segment information (Continued) (@) DEEBR (&)

Year ended and as at
31st March 2014
BE-Z-—-NFE=H=+—H
LFERR-ZE—=F

=A=t+-8
Vessel
chartering Total
MR E et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FExT
Segment liabilities 2EERE 4,067 4,067
Unallocated: ROE :
Amount due to a related company  FEfF— &I RE A 7 08 41
Amount due to a director N —REEHIE 756
Proceeds from rights issue HARFT 1S IR 141,241
Others EHAh 1,036
Total liabilities per balance sheet EEBERBERSE 147,141
Other segment information Hihn &R
Capital expenditure VN 36,676 36,676
Unallocated capital expenditure ROMERFHZ 1,709
38,385
Depreciation (note 14) e (FsE14) 933 933
Unallocated depreciation RoBcir e 128

1,061
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6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION ¢ WARDEER »)

(Continued)
(a) Segment information (Continued) (a) 2@ER (&)
Year ended and as at
31st March 2013
BE_T—=9=-A=1+—H
HFEMR_E—=F
=A=+—H
vessel
chartering Total
fpEE #5t
HK$'000 HK$'000
Segment revenue and results DEWRAREE FET FET
Revenue WA - -
Segment results DEHEE (23,086) (23,086)
Corporate expenses R (8,323)
Operating loss K Es1a (31,409)
Loss before taxation K F R E 1R (31,409)
Taxation MIE -
Loss for the year REEEE (31,409)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERS
Non-current assets EMBEE
Plant and equipment B 61,722 61,722
Current assets mENEE 8,357 8,357
Segment assets PEEE 70,079 70,079
Unallocated: ROE :
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTETT 12,108
Others Hith 167

Total assets per balance sheet BEBEREERAE 82,354
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6 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6

(Continued)
(@) Segment information (Continued)

(b)

WARDEER #)

(@ ZEEHE

Year ended and as at
31st March 2013
H=z—_T—=F=-A=+—H
HFEMR-_E—=F

=A=+—H
Vessel
chartering Total
fafEEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHIT
Segment liabilities PEEE 8,821 8,821
Unallocated: ROE :
Amount due to a former director Bt —RRIESFIE 27,398
Amount due to a director N —REEHIE 14,258
Others HAth 8
Total liabilities per balance sheet EEABREEERE 51,350
Other segment information Hih o EE R
Depreciation (note 14) e (fFsE14) 1,022 1,022
Revenue are derived from the following (b) WMADBRRETINETEERFE :
major customers:
2014 2013
—E—nmE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FHIT
Customer A BFEHR 5,229 -
Customer B 2EL 2,992 -
Customer C EFER 2,934 -
Customer D BET 1,788 -

12,943
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 EBEMEERESZ2XZH
2014 2013
—E-mE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Fuel costs WRELRR 2R 8,867 9,205
Staff costs, including directors’ BIKA  BiEESHE
emoluments (note 12) (MF5E12) 5,987 8,014
Auditor’'s remuneration Z E R B & 300 250
Depreciation e 1,061 1,022
Operating lease charges in respect T REF 2 EEHER SR
of property rental 2,626 2,476
Professional fees EXEA 2,767 713
Repair and maintenance HERRE 60 1,223
Vessel management fee MAMEIRE R 2,687 936
Others Hip 6,898 7,156

Total cost of sales and administrative  $4ERKAS R 1TIRE B 4258

expenses 31,253 30,995
FINANCE COSTS 8 RERA
2014 2013
—F-mEF Ser—=4E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Finance costs B E A AR

— other finance charges — HtE %A 419 414
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9

10

TAXATION

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as there is no
estimated assessable profit arising from Hong Kong during
the year (2013: Nil). Taxes on profits in respect of the Group
companies operating elsewhere have not been provided as
the profits therefrom are not subject to taxation of any
jurisdictions (2013: Nil).

No provision for deferred taxation has been made as there
is no significant timing difference in tax provision or tax loss
which is expected to be crystallized in the foreseeable
future (2013: Nil).

The tax on the Group's loss before taxation differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate in
Hong Kong as follows:

BiE

HRAFEEIL ERBBELEEAERD

A - ERE I R BB RIS T AT R
—E=F 8 BRAAKEKER
AAERMELEZFEHAE S 25
B EPMEM ADAE R AR R - W
BERRB (T —=F 1 8) -

HRBBEE RN AR ARRBIEEZ
MEBELRERERBEEER - L
YERLELEHBEHERE( T —=F:
&) e

AR ERB AT E R E 2 HIRERA
EEMEFAEZERUREZEMT ¢

2014 2013
—ZT-mF —F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Loss before taxation BRES AT E 1B (3,487) (31,409)
Calculated at tax rate of 16.5% I E165% 15
(2013: 16.5%) —E—=1F:165%) (575) (5,183)
Tax effect of: TRIA £ .
Income not subject to taxation AR Z WA (4,651) =
Expenses not deductible for taxation AT 407%4 > B 2
purposes 3,716 3,837
Tax losses for which no deferred A FERIR AL PT 1S FR
income tax was recognised 2 5 Es1E 1,510 1,346
Tax charge FRIA - -
DIVIDEND 10 RE

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil).

EXETEZNBE_T—EOF=A
=t+—-RALEFERNEAMRE(ZZE—=
FoE)
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11 BREE

2014 2013

—E-QmEF —F—=F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHIT

Loss attributable to shareholders f& R (L &1 (3,487) (31,409)
Weighted average number of ordinary stE&E &SRR E AR EE 2 & imAk
shares, for the purposes of Do e gk (FR%) (HI5E)

calculating basic losses per share

(shares in thousands) (Note) 786,466 648,384

Basic losses per share BREREE HK(0.44) cent HK(4.84) cent

(0.44) &AL (4.84) &AL

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic loss per share for both years has
not been adjusted for the Rights Issue and Bonus Issue
completed on 3rd April 2014 as the increase of ordinary shares
has corresponding change in resources flowing into the
Company. Further details of the Rights Issue and Bonus Issue
are set out in note 31.

As there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding as at 31st March 2014 and 2013, the diluted
losses per share are equal to the basic losses per share.

EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(@) Directors’ and senior management'’s
emoluments
Year ended 31st March 2014

et : R — M A =B el 2 HIRRALRR
AT - AR BB AN A REEIRD
BORART - FE R M IEFERN BT
HEREARER 2 EBARINE T 58 &
TR T o HEAR RAT AR BT R IR SN MY o
Sl

MRZEBE-—NFER_FE-—=F=HA=+—
B SIEARBEEETE AR
BEREIEHRESREANERER -

12 EEREEHFALTHE
(a) EERBEREBASHH

BE-ZE—NFE=A=+—HLEF

E
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Name of director Fees ERETEIZ Total
EENR we EEHR st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Executive directors HITEE
Ms. Zheng Juhua EiZ5Te it 430 15 445
Mr. Chen Shaohua RS A 390 15 405
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen PREREE 1,330 15 1,345
Independent non-executive B EHTES
directors
Mr. Man Kwok Leung SBEREAE 100 - 100
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter KELCEE 100 - 100
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth TEERE 100 - 100
2,450 45 2,495
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12 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND 12 EEREEFEALTHMES @
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
(a) Directors’ and senior management’s (a) EEREHEEASEMZ)
emoluments (Continued)
Year ended 31st March 2013 BT =F=A=+—HIF
=
Employer’s
contribution
to pension
scheme
Name of director Fees RIRETEIZ Total
EEHA ik REHK Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Executive directors HITES
Ms. Zheng Juhua BIEL L 390 15 405
Mr. Chen Shaohua PR ES A 390 15 405
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen BREESLAE 1,300 15 1,315

Independent non-executive B EHTES

directors

Mr. Man Kwok Leung BEREE 0 - 90
Mr. Yu Pak Yan, Peter RELCELE 90 - 90
Mr. Chi Chi Hung, Kenneth RIS E 0 - 90

2,350 45 2,395
No directors waived or agreed to waive any FN - EEMEREXRBRESL
emoluments during the year (2013: Nil). Fees paid to AME(ZFT—=F: &) - FAX
independent non-executive directors during the year NBILFENTESTZ2HE AR
amounted to HK$300,000 (2013: HK$270,000). 300,000 (=& —=4 : 270,000

BT °

No emoluments have been paid to the individual or REEZZ—NOF=A=+—HI
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining FEA - WERERNESZGER
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during < - {EAM S INEE sk BN iR AR
the year ended 31st March 2014 (2013: Nil). SEZRSUBRBE(ZE—=

FE)
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EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The Directors’ emoluments presented above include
the emoluments of the three (2013: three) highest
paid individuals in the Group. The emoluments of the
remaining two (2013: two) highest paid individual
during the year ended 31st March 2014 were:

A 15 S R Mk

12 EERBREFALTHES @

(b) EEZEHAL
EXmEINNEEHFMEE=54(=
Z—=F: ZR)AKEESHFA
ITZBE - REBE-_T—NF=H
=St HLEFEEABTMA(ZE
—ZF WMA)RRFATZHE

=3
2014 2013
—ZE-NF —E—=%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, bonus, other allowances e~ fE4L ~ Efib)ERL
and benefits in kind REYF = 633 540
Employer’s contributions to RINGT S Z B EH-FK
retirement scheme 28 26
661 566
Emolument bands Number of individuals
B <& Y F A
2014 2013
=F-OF B
Nil — HK$500,000 = 702 500,000 7T 2 2

LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

COMPANY

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$5,353,000 (2013: HK$39,452,000).

13 AR FE ABEARSF
EFERZHEBEASHE

RABHERRERZAFEBERE
M 518 4258 /55,353,000 T (ZE—=
£F 1 39,452,000 7T) ©
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 REREH
Group REME
Furniture
and Motor
fixtures vehicles Vessel Total
REAREE AE M st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT TAT TART

At 1st April 2012 R-_ZE——FmAE—H
Cost B A 27 - 87,017 87,044
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (27) - (24,273) (24,300)
Net book amount RESE - - 62,744 62,744

Year ended 31st March 2013 HE-_T-=F=-A=1—HILEFE

Opening net book amount FHEREFE - - 62,744 62,744

Depreciation e - - (1,022) (1,022)

Closing net book amount FREREFE - - 61,722 61,722
At 31st March 2013 R-ZF—=F=A=+—H

Cost XA 27 - 87,017 87,044

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (27) - (25,295) (25,322)

Net book amount REFE - - 61,722 61,722

Yearended 31st March 2014  HE-ZT-—WNF=A=+—HItFE

Opening net book amount FNEREFE - - 61,722 61,722
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBAR = = 61,211) 61,211)
Additions NE = 1,709 36,676 38,385
Depreciation nE = (128) (933) (1,061)
Closing net book amount FREMFHE - 1,581 36,254 37,835
At 31st March 2014 RZE-—NFE=A=+—H
Cost BN 27 1,709 36,676 38,412
Accumulated depreciation 2N E (27) (128) (422) (577)

Net book amount REFE - 1,581 36,254 37,835
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14 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14 FHEREHM &)
Ccompany AAT
Furniture and fixtures
REAREE
2014 2013
—E-QmEF —F—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning and end of the year REF RFER
Cost AR 27 27
Accumulated depreciation 2FrihE (27) (27)
Net book amount BREFE - =
15 SUBSIDIARIES 15 EAF]
2014 2013
—E—NF —T—=F
HK$000 HK$'000
F&T FET
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR - IRACAE 12 39
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR I B A R FIE 42,630 99,795
Less: Impairment of receivables? B EBGEIRRE (4,371) (64,393)
38,259 35,402
Less: Amounts not expected to be B B TNEE—FRNEIR
realised within one year x| (38,259) (32,402)
Amounts classified under current asset A A REEE 2 S5 - 3,000
Amounts classified under non-current  SFfEAERBEE 2SR
asset 38,271 32,441
#  Impairment of HK$4,371,000 (2013: HK$64,393,000) was # ERARAETHERASGES KB
recognised for amounts due from subsidiaries with a carrying BN R (ELS 18 31 A L 16173 42,630,000 78
amount of HK$42,630,000 (before deducting impairment l0ss) M(=H==5F ¢ 99,79510007;579 ZJEW
(2013: HK$99,795,000) because certain subsidiaries of the WEQET?KIEEE@SWEAEN,OOO}%E(:
Company were loss-making. F—=% : 64,393,00087T) °
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest BWHEBARRBERERR Rk
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. At 31st March BEATERHR - R-_FT—HF=A
2014, the portion of HK$38,259,000 (2013: HK$32,402,000) =T— R BRHBRAFAAS
of amounts due from subsidiaries are expected not to be 38%59,0007’571(:3?_:¢ + 32,402,000
realised within one year from the balance sheet date. The AL)ERIEEGEERE—FRER -
carrying amounts of the balances is approximate to their %SRS REERA R FEEE

fair values.
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15

16

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries wholly-owned by
the Company as at 31st March 2014.

Name

=L

15 B AT %)

THRARAR_E—EHF=A=+—

HEEHEAZIEZMBRR -

Issued and fully paid
ordinary share capital

ERTRAZEBRRE

Principal activities and
place of operation

ITEXBERERBR

Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,

directly held

REBRBARBESEIMR LW EZFE

Ace Plus Ventures Limited

Ace Plus Ventures Limited

Noble Century Investments Limited

Noble Century Investments Limited

Incorporated in Hong Kong,
directly held

REBFMAE LW EERFE

Noble Century Finance Limited

Cinft B ER AT

TRADE RECEIVABLE

100 shares of US$1 each

100 A& AR TEIE 1 3= 7T 2 AR 19

100 shares of US$1 each
100 i &I E B 1 E T 2 B

10,000 shares of HK$1 each

10,000 B AXEIE 178 7T < B 12

Vessel chartering operated
mainly in China and
Southeast Asia region

FERPE KRR
SN E S

Investment holdings
REER

Holding of a Money Lenders
Licence in Hong Kong
FAEBEREARR

16 FEWERF

—E-mE

Group
REME

2014 2013

—E—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&T FET

Trade receivable

JE U AR K

1,385 =

The Group’s credit terms for its vessel chartering are
individually negotiated with its trade customers.

AEBEMMEE 2 EEERFIGER EE
BEHEPER -
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TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
An aged analysis of the trade receivable as at the end of

A 15 S R Mk

16 FEWERR &)

RBEHR - RBERAHZE HEURHK

the reporting period, based on the date of invoice, is as THEREE DT T
follows:
Group
AEH
2014 2013
—F-mF —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHIT
Within 1 month —EAR 1,385 -

The aged analysis of the trade receivable that is not

TRABERIEZ E 5 BUGRIERER 2T

considered to be impaired is as follows: [AENE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—MF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET THIT
Neither past due nor impaired B 2 480 5 IR R R E 1,385 =

Trade receivable represented an amount due from a single
customer and the Group has a high concentration of credit
risk accordingly. The trade receivable is non-interest
bearing.

The carrying amount of trade receivable is denominated at
United States dollars.

BHRBFRIBEERE-—FPRE - K
SERLAEREEETRAR BHEK
IR TR R -

PR AR R ARE B LASS TS IME ©

INVENTORIES FE
Group
AEE
2014 2013
—E—E —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T Ti#T
Bunkers on board M EREFAR 2,061 4,345
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18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

19

18 RERBITERT

Group Company
REE AKATF
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-FE —T—-F —E-0WF —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT AT FET BT
Cash atbankandonhand BT R FERS 163,032 12,108 161,575 11,116

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are

Be RRTHEFZREENRTIIEED

denominated in the following currencies: & :
Group Company
KEE AATH
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —ET—=F ZEB-0NOF =%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T T FET T
HK$ BT 161,516 11,146 161,516 11,116
us$ ETT 1,516 962 59 -
163,032 12,108 161,575 11,116
SHARE CAPITAL 19 R
(a) Authorised capital (@) EERAE
Number of Nominal
shares Value
RHEE EE
HK$'000
FET
At 1st April 2012, ordinary sharesof ~ R=ZT——FWA—H -
HK$0.01 each FIREE001 BT L@k 10,000,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation (Note (i) B in & B (BT =E ) (8,000,000,000) -
As at 31st March 2013, NZZE—=F=A=+—8
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREEC.05 Btz L@k 2,000,000,000 100,000
Capital reduction (Note (iv)) BR S HI (BTEE (iv) 8,000,000,000 =
As at 31st March 2014, RZE—NME=A=+— EI
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEC BT 10,000,000,000 100,000
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19 BRA (&)
(b) ERITRBERA

19 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
(b) Issued and fully paid capital

Number of Nominal
shares Value
RHEE HE
HK$'000

T

At 1st April 2012, ordinary sharesof ~ RZZT——FMA—H -

HK$0.01 each SREECO BT AR 3,020,000,000 30,200
Share consolidation (Note (i)) W&t & B (7 () (2,416,000,000) =
Placing of new shares (Note (ii)) Ao & &R 6 (BT (i) 120,000,000 6,000
As at 31st March 2013, R-E—=F=A=+—H

ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FRRE(E0.05 BT ik 724,000,000 36,200
Placing of new shares (Note (i) P &5 37 A% 1 (B & i) 120,000,000 6,000
Capital reduction (Note (iv)) ARG (B 3E (iv)) - (33,760)
As at 31st March 2014, RZE—NF=A=+—H"

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEN BTz LTER 844,000,000 8,440
Notes: P
0) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the 0] BEARFBRRN —F——F 7

shareholders of the Company at a special general THARSTCRRENAS @B
meeting on 14th September 2012, every five shares of SRRFEE  SAREREE0.01
the Company of HK$0.01 each were consolidated into BILZ AR BN A — R
one consolidated share of HK$0.05 each (the “Share E{H0.058 T2 & Btk ([h&
Consolidation”). Bt1) o

(i)~ On 14th August 2012, the Company entered into a iy R=F—-——F/\A+WMH"  £AQ7
placing agreement with a placing agent to place shares B SR IRET L & 175k . FAREAD
comprising up to 600,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each S B0 LARE £ (50.05 78 70 (I E 70
(equivalents to 120,000,000 consolidated shares of SHBLE S HR10.2587T) AL &
HK$0.05 each upon completion of Share Consolidation) at £ % 600,000,000 ) & i 1 (50.0]
a placing price of HK$0.05 per placing share (equivalents B 752 By R E T D & 6 2 X
to HK$0.25 per placing consolidated share). The placing 1% 120,000,000 fix & % 1 {8.0.05 /&
was completed on 16th November 2012. Accordingly, the TLZEBRD) c BERN=F—=
Company increased its issued share capital by nominal St At Bk - Bt AR
value of HK$6,000,000 and raised capital of Al B A A B BT R IR EE N
HK$30,000,000, before expenses, of which HK$15 million 60000008 T & & & & %
has been applied for the partial repayment of the Group’s 30,000,000/ 7t (R B FEFI 32 ) - £
borrowings and the remaining of approximately HK$14 #115,000,000%8 7L 2 ISR AR S
million was applied as general working capital of the E 25 EE - 82T £914,000,0007%
Group. TRIBERASE —REEES -

(i)~ On 30th August 2013, the Company entered into a (i) M=F—=FA\HA=+H  KA7A
placing agreement with a placing agent to place shares B ERIBT I E W - TR
comprising up to 120,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each at Elin NELEE 028 B TR ERZS
a placing price of HK$0.28 per placing share. The placing 120,000,000 i &A% & 0.05 /8 7T 2
was completed on 23rd September 2013. Accordingly, B EER_FT—=FNA
the Company increased its issued share capital by —T=RA5K Bt - ARFIE
nominal value of HK$6,000,000 and raised capital of HE TR EERS 16,000,000
HK$33,600,000, before expenses, of which HK$15 million BT B S E 33,600,000/ 7T (K
has been applied for the partial repayment of the Group’s BIEF %) ¢ & 7 15000,0007% 7T
borrowings and the remaining approximately HK$18 EREEERNEEINES 8
million was applied as general working capital of the #718,000,00078 7T & M E AR LB =
Group. BED

(v)  Pursuant to a special resolution passed by the (v REARFBERERAN_FT-HOE=AH
shareholders of the Company at a special general M H 8172 BRERIA S @B 2
meeting on 4th March 2014, the nominal value of the APRGEZ » AR AT EE R
shares of the Company was reduced from HK$0.05 to 0.05 75 7L Bl gt 2= 1% 0.01 B T, ©
HK$0.01 each. The authorised but unissued shares of f%0.05 78 7T < )5 E B R BEITRDHF
HK$0.05 each was subdivided into five shares of HK$0.01 ARRETNR0.01 BT °

each.

PRARFERBEITZBRMN S H R
ARRIRBBNDZBRRMAL -

All the shares issued during the year rank pari passu
with the existing shares of the Company in all
aspects.
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19 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(c)

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 2nd
September 2013 and the Stock Exchange granting
approval of the listing of and permission to deal in the
shares to be issued under the share option scheme
(the” New Scheme”) on 3rd September 2013, the
Company adopted the New Scheme in replacement
of a share option scheme adopted on 25th March
2003 (the “Expired Scheme”) which had been expired
on 24th March 2013.

The Expired Scheme

On 25th March 2003, the Company adopted the
Expired Scheme which, unless otherwise terminated,
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 25th March 2003. The Expired Scheme had been
expired on 24th March 2013.

During the term of the Expired Scheme, a total of
4,500,000 options were granted, of which, 2,000,000
options had been exercised. The remaining 2,500,000
options were lapsed, and no share options are
currently outstanding. No further options were
granted under the Expired Scheme since its expiry.

The New Scheme

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 2nd September 2013, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of the New Scheme.
The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years from 2nd September 2013, unless
otherwise terminated. The purpose of the New
Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible and
effective means of incentivizing, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the directors, employees and other
participants of the Company and the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
New Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
shares in issue on 2nd September 2013 (i.e.
72,400,000 shares) unless the Company seeks the
approval of the shareholders in general meeting for
refreshing the 10% limit under the New Scheme.

The exercise price, vesting period, the exercisable
period and the number of shares subject to each
option will be determined by the Board at the time of
grant. No option has been granted by the Company
under the New Scheme since its adoption to the date
of this report.

19 &%)

(c)

BT
BEARNRR-_ZE—=FNLA-H
BITZRRAFRLBRZ LER
BEEBMIAN T -=F A=
B #ER RIS S ([FETE])
HIEITZBRNDLETREE A0
AIE RN ZILBRAR =T =
FZA-Z+HEEARATER_-Z
—=F = A -+ WHEmZEE
rEI([EfEmaTEll) o

EEmsTE
RZEBEZE=F=A=-+HB &R
RIERRME Emat & BRBITRIE
SN ZEtElE =TT =F= A
“HtRABRFEARNER - A
+F - BEEmEER T —=F
—AZ+AE® °

REEMTEIZHBEA - & £FH
4,500,00017 fE A% #E » E4r 2,000,000
BN B 1T B4 2,500,000
DBEAED KX - BN
AT - REEmTEEW
1% R IR B EE AR AE o

#at &

RARR ZE—=F LA ZHHT
ZBERBEAE L - NATRERA
HEBRFET B - BRBITHRIEIN - 37
AEE—E-=FNA-BEHE
BRREN - REITF - FEtdlE
ERANRE MAEEGREE SN
FREHAMIERES BT RHE
2 EmE MG - A 2 -
E R HAEF

RTTERIEHT A 8T B M RTT
{0 BY P M At T A RE 3R 1T A AR {7
#E  AHEETSEBARFT
B2 BITRANEY 30%

HITEREFFEN T REHNME
R EmMA R RITHRNDRE - &
HAEBEAN-ZE—=FhA=H
2 2 17 B 1D 2 10% ( BN72,400,000
R - R 2 R A SR BOR B AR R
Ae EHOEE I ERERTEIE T
Z 10%PR%E »

E=e RN ELBRERETEN
FBREZITHEE RBY  17EH
KETERBMEE - BFRMBEHE
A BE - NR B W EBIEI
SR E (TR AHE -
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20 RESERVES 20 715
Group AEE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Contributed Retained
premium surplus earnings Total
(RitER)/
RBEE EMER REBF Fok ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT THET THET
At 1st April 2012 R-ZZE——&MF—H 29,093 = (26,120) 2973
Placing of new shares RE3RM 24,000 - - 24,000
Transaction costs attributable BITHROENS
t0 issue of new shares RBHA (760) - - (760)
Loss for the year KEEEE = = (31,409 (31,409)
At 31st March 2013 RZE—=F=f=1+—H 52,333 = (57,529) (5,196)
Placing of new shares &G 27,600 - - 27,600
Transaction costs attributable BATHIRAD B
to issue of new shares TSR (905) - - (905)
Capital reduction BB, - 33,760 - 33,760
Share premium cancellation B mEE (79,028) 79,028 = =
Transfer to set-off accumulated ~ ERLUKHBE
losses B = (61,730) 61,730 =
Loss for the year REEER - - (3,487) (3,487)
At 31st March 2014 W-ZE—NF=A=1+—-8 = 51,058 714 51,772
Company ¥ NN
Share Contributed  Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
RBEE EfES 2EER Eok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT TET TEL
At 1st April 2012 R-ZE——FMHA—H 29,093 - (17,116) 11,977
Placing of new shares LSRG 24,000 - - 24,000
Transaction costs attributable BITHRO N
to issue of new shares THEA (760) - - (760)
Loss for the year (note 13) KEEHE M 13) = - (39,452) (39,452)
At 31st March 2013 R-E—=F=fA=1—H 52,333 = (56,568) (4,235)
Placing of new shares [N an) 27,600 - - 27,600
Transaction costs attributable BATHNIRAD B
to issue of new shares RBHA (905) = = (905)
Capital reduction BRAER = 33,760 = 33,760
Share premium cancellation WD Bt s (79,028) 79,028 - -
Transfer to set-off accumulated EEPURHE 25T
losses B = (61,730) 61,730 =
Loss for the year (note 13) REFEB(MF13) - - (5,353) (5353)

At 31st March 2014 RZE-MF=A=1—H = 51,058 (191) 50,867
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21

22

23

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

Amount due to a director is unsecured and interest free.
The amount due to a director is repayable on 31st
December 2014 and was classified as non-current liability
as at 31st March 2013. During the year, certain of the
amount due to a director to the extend of HK$15 million
was repaid from the proceeds from placing of shares (note
19). The carrying amount of the balances is denominated in
HK$ and is approximate to its fair values.

AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER DIRECTOR
Amount due to a former director was unsecured and
interest free. The former director is also a director of a
subsidiary and a former subsidiary of the Company. The
carrying amount of the balances was denominated in HK$
and was approximate to its fair values.

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY
Amount due to a related company is unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
balance is denominated in HK$ and is approximate to its
fair value.

21

22

23

B —REERE
EN—REEREAERTREE - &
NEZEREFTR-_Z—HNF+=A
Z=+t—HsZAHBEE N =T
— - A=+-—-BRBEAFERHE
E-RFERN BN —REZHRESP
15,000,000 7T 2 FA B2 & B% 15 BT 18 308
EEMEI9) ZSEHZEEENS
TLHE - WEFESZ AFERS -

Pt — BRI ES A

R — B EERARBEARES -
SHEENARRAET —BHBAR
R-RAHBARZEE - RSHEH
BEEELVETTIIE - B EHATERE -

P —E BB E A RFE
FA—BEE A ARERRER - 28
RIREREEE - RS2 REEN
BIIIE - REAFEEE -
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TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

A 15 S R Mk

24 BAIIRR

FERNBRFRE DTN ¢

Group
AEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHTT
0 to 90 days 0£9H 3,600 1,269
91 to 180 days 912180 H - 2,168
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - 2,564
3,600 6,001
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated FERBR R Z BRE BN T3 EEFIE
in the following currencies:
Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —EF—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THIT
us$ eIy 3,600 5,671
Other currencies HAth 5 - 330
3,600 6,001

PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

As at 31st March 2014, the amounts represent the
proceeds received in advance from Rights Issue which was
completed on 3rd April 2014, details of which are set out in
note 31.

25 HERFASFIE

RZTE-—NE=ZA=+—HB ZKER
BEKIN -_Z-—HFHA=HEXZ
AP SR - S B NHITES -
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26 GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 26 & —FEIK B A 3k

On 31st July 2013, the Company entered into a disposal
agreement (the “Disposal”) with a company beneficially
owned by a former director of the Company, who is also a
director of a subsidiary and a former subsidiary, Asian Atlas
Limited (“Asian Atlas”), of the Company. Pursuant to the
disposal agreement, the Company (i) disposed of its 100%
equity interest in Asian Atlas and (ii) assigned the
shareholder’s loan of approximately HK$95,424,000 in full
owing from Asian Atlas to the Company for a cash
consideration of HK$40 million.

The Disposal was completed on 30th September 2013. The
major classes of assets and liabilities of Asian Atlas as at

RZEBE—=F+HA=+—H KQ7H
KAR—BAEES (AW AARRE—MH
bS8~ 7] & —E Rt B8 A & Asian Atlas
Limited ([Asian Atlas|) 7 & =) B&= %A
ZARCRIN—MhEHEmE(HES
H]) - BEBEHE®HZE  AARNERENR
f&40,000,0007% 7T (i)t & Asian Atlas 2
100% A% 2N 7 K (i) 7 288 5% Asian Atlas
FESF AN A R 2 B BB FX 49 95,424,000 78
=

HTEEEER -_E—=FNA=1+H=
X o Asian Atlasi A HE KB 2 EEE

the completion date of the Disposal were as follows:

ENEEERIT

Notes HK$'000
B aE T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE :
Plant and equipment B 14 61,211
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BARIER
H Ath fE U IR 2,508
Inventories FE 4,246
Cash and bank balances R RIRITEETT 1,162
Trade payables FESERRX (6,504)
Accruals and other payables FERTE A & ELAth PR 3R (1,746)
Amount due to a former director Bt —RATEEKIA 22 (36,119)
Amount due to the Company AN EAWNEIE ] (95,424)
(70,6606)
Assignment of amount due to the Company SR E AN A R FRIE 95,424
Net asset value BEFEE 24,758
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — TR B A Bl as 15,242
Total consideration BRE 40,000
Satisfied by: BATHAER -
Cash H& 40,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of a subsidiary & —EH B AR FFES 2
WEFRA
Cash consideration HERE 40,000
Cash and bank balances disposed of HE RS RIRTTER (1,162)

38,838
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27 COMMITMENTS 27 EIE
(a) Capital commitments (@) BAREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments as AEERBEHREUTEANE

at the end of the reporting period: £
Group and Company
AEBRAKAT
2014 2013
—2—mEF —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET THIT

Contracted but not provided for: EEEEES .
— Leasehold improvement —HERE 309 -

(b) Operating lease commitments (b) KREHEAIE
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under RAA BN S LA EIT T 7 kK
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: SEBEMNFEZEINT :

Group and Company
AEERAAT
2014 2013
—B-mE —T—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Not later than 1 year TERMR1E 2,224 -
Later than 1 year but not EBR1FETERSFE
later than 5 years 4,650 -

6,874 =

None of the leases include contingent rentals. MEHEEBESHAEE
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28 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT

28 FEREREREK

(a) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to (@) BRENBEEKEEKMAR
net cash used in operations SREZHE
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Loss before taxation BR7% Al &5 18 (3,487) (31,409)
Finance costs B A 419 414
Depreciation e 1,061 1,022
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — R B A RS (15,242) =
Cash used in operations before Rt EEBECE BRI LEER
working capital changes FrRES (17,249) (29,973)
Increase in trade receivables & U BR SR (1,385) -
Increase in deposits, & ENFIEREMERK
prepayments and other receivables  FRIEIE N (1,369) (52)
Increase in inventories FEILm (1,962) (3,055)
Increase in trade payables JE - BRFIE 0 4,103 4,831
Increase in amount due to a FES — MR RAE A R IR N
related company 41 -
Decrease in accruals, other payables FEz+EF « Hth fE 0B
and deposit received KB Wiz E R (863) (1,899)
Net cash used in operations B ETEFTRIR € F 58 (18,684) (30,148)

(b) Major non-cash transaction
(i) During the year, the Group recognised non-
cash expenses arising from the accrued finance

costs of HK$419,000 (2013: HK$414,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2013, a deposit
of HK$1,501,000 was received by an agent on
behalf of the Group.

(b) FEH}BRERS
() FR AEERERRKEER
BERKAZIERSHA §z
419,000;’%75(:3—5
414,000/ 7T) °

R-_E—=F=A=+—H
EFER —Z2RERARAR
£ EUEUZ 1,501,000/ ¢ °
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29 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) During the year, apart from those disclosed

A 15 S R Mk

29 RRAEALRS
(@) RERN - BRAMBRELMSDS

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, T EIN  ANEE D EAFEA
the following significant transactions were carried THETANTEARS :
with related parties:
2014 2013
—E—NF —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THIT
Proceeds from disposal of a HE—EHN B AR FSHIE
subsidiary (note (i) (BE=E ) 40,000 -
Purchase of a vehicle registration BE B R E AR RS (FRE (i)
mark (note (ii)) 41 _
Notes: MiEE

(i) The Company disposed of a subsidiary to a company
beneficially owned by Mr. Lau Chun Ming, a former
director of the Company who is also a director of a
subsidiary and a former subsidiary of the Company (note
26).

(ii) The Company purchased a vehicle registration mark from
a related company of which the director, Mr. Chen
Shaohua, has beneficial interest.

(b) License to use a property granted by a

related company

The Company was licensed a right to use an office
property at an zero consideration under a license
agreement by a related company of which the
director, Ms. Zheng Juhua has controlling interest.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the
Company will bear the costs incurred for using the
property and both the parties can terminate the
license by immediate notice.

The license has been terminated subsequent to the
end of the reporting period in April 2014.

(c) Key management compensation
The compensation of key management personnel
paid or payable by the Group in respect of the year
totalling HK$2,495,000 (2013: HK$2,395,000).

() ARABAARE]—RAAEEEZIR
BEE(ENARAR—HHEA
Ak—TEAMNBARZES)Ex
BA 2z ARHE KB 22 R (K
$£26) °

(i) ARAMNEFRIELEEEES
BmZARBE T —([EAEmELR
fi5 -

(b) H—XEHEELTARKERY
E A ST
RFEEBEENR(EFHBHEX
THAEERELS) RIS AT
i - AR BERSEEER
R—ERAEYE - REZBHK
o ARRINAEERZMEME
HEZEM - MaI #1877 ] bARDES
R A FFRTHE ©

FRFEERSHREN_F—OF
PMARILE -

(c) XEEIEAEIREN
REERAFEENRENEEE
A8 Z 3R & X 524950008
TT(=ZZ—=4F : 2,395,000 L) °
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30 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

31

The directors of the Company regard Superb Smart Limited,
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, as
being the ultimate holding company.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
on 4th March 2014, the Company announced a rights issue
(the “Rights Issue”) of 844,000,000 rights shares (“Rights
Shares”) of HK$0.01 each at a subscription price of HK$0.18
per Rights Share on the basis of one Rights Share for every
one share held with bonus issue (the “Bonus Issue”) on the
basis of two bonus shares (“Bonus Shares”) for every one
Rights Share taken up under the Rights Issue.

The Rights Issue and the Bonus Issue was completed
subsequent to the end of the reporting period on 3rd April
2014, the Company allotted and issued 844,000,000 Rights
Shares and 1,688,000,000 Bonus Shares, with proceeds of
approximately HK$151,920,000, before expenses, of which
HK$141,241,000 has been received before the end of the
reporting period.

30 RARERDF

31
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Five Year Financial Summary

T A MBS 4

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-OF —T-—=F —T——F —T——F —ZEZF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T FHT T FHT
(Restated)
(&%)
Results ES5
Turnover =20
continuing operation B R 2T 12,943 - 24,915 - 66,883
Discontinued operations BRI - = - 53,099 57,179
12,943 = 24,915 53,099 124,062
(Loss)/profit before taxation BR AT (E518) S5 F
Continuing operation RHBICE TS (3,487) (31,409) (36,226) (36,186) 466
Discontinued operations EARIEET - = = 47,931 10,639
(3,487) (31,409) (36,226) 11,745 11,105
Taxation (charge)/credit FRIE () e
Continuing operation SEH S - = (336) 72 150
Discontinued operations BERIEEK - = = 874 429
- - (336) 946 579
(Loss)/profit attributable to AR e
shareholders (F518), /&7l
continuing operation REC AT (3,487) (31,409) (36,562) (36,114) 616
Discontinued operations BRI - - - 48,805 11,068
(3,487) (31,409) (36,562) 12,691 11,684
Dividends &5 - - - 138,920 2,114
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BEMAE 207,353 82,354 69,655 85,422 388,579
Total liabilities B BB 147,141 51,350 36,482 15,687 190,501
Net assets BEFE 60,212 31,004 33,173 69,735 198,078
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